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Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Directors’ report

The directors subimit thesr annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Dacember 2012

Businass review and principal actlvities
Cucina Finance (UK) Limited 1s a irited company incorporated, domiciled and operating n the United Kingdom

The principal acivity of the Company 1s that of a holding end finance company for the Cucina Finance {UK) Linuted Group The Company 1s part of a financing group of companies
headed end controlled by Bain Capital lnvestors LLC  The principal activity of the Group s the specialist supply of frozen chilled and ambient foods as well as catenng supplies and
equipment to the catenng industry  The principal trading companies in the Group are Brake Bros Limited Brake Bros Foodservice Limited M&J Seafood Limuted Wild Harvest Limited
O Kane Food Service Limited Freshfayre Limited Brake Bros Foodservice Iraland Lutited, Brake France Service SAS and Menigo Foodservice AB

The results of the Group are set out In the consolidated income statement on page 4 and show a loss on ordinary activilies before taxation of £423 3m (2011 £108 1m} for the year and
revenue of £2 897 7m (2011 £2,449 8m) The results for the year are after charging exceptional costs of £24 Om (2011 £26 9m) refarred to 1n note 3 of these financial statements

The Group has net debt of £1,710 9m (2014 £1 650 Om} (note 24 to the financial statements) and a cash inflow from cperating activiies of £71 9m (2011 £82 9m)

Principal risks and uncertainties

The dwectors of tha largest UK parent undertaking Cucina Lux Investments Limited, manage 1ts Group s risks and performanca through its immediate subsidiary company Gueing
Investments (UK) 3 Limited  For this reason a discussion of the Group s risks together with an analysis using key performance indicators has not been included by the Company's
directors The principal risks and uncertanties, together with the development, performance and position, and an analysis using key performance indicators of the Cucina Lux
Investments Limited Group which inciude those of the Company and the Group are discussed in the business review of Cucina Lux Investments Limited s annual raport, which does not
form part of this report  Details of how to obtain these financeal statements can be found in note 29 to the financial statements

Future outlook and geing n

As stated above the Company 1s part of a financing group of companies and therefore the going concem of the company 18 dependent upon the averall going concem of the group In
assessing whether the financial statements for the Group and Company should be prepared on the going concern basis the directors have considered the future outlook of the Company
and of the Group on a combined basis A fuller analysis of this outlock and the basis for this assessment 1s set out In the financial statements of the largest UK parent company Cucina
Lux Investments Limited Having considered the future operating profits cash flows and facilities available to the Group the directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient
funde to rapay s labilities as they fall due Consequently the financial statements of the Group and the Company are prepared on the going concem basis

Dividends
No intenm dividends have been pad (2041 Enit} and the directors do not recommend a fina! dividend (2011 £nd)

Directors

The directors of the Company whe wera m office dunng the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements are given below
1R Goldsmith

D Poter

F D Merry Del Val Barbavara D Graveliona

S Gent (appointad 3 January 2012)

P Wieland (appuinted 2 Apnl 2012)

P E R Jansen was a director duning the year but resigned as a director on 1 Apnl 2013
K McMeikan was appointed as a director on 1 Apnil 2013

Directors® third party indemnity provisions

A qualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined 1in Section 234 of the Companias Act 2006 1s in force for the benefit of each of the directors in respect of habilties ncurred as a
result of their office, to the extent permitted by law In respect of those liabilites for which directors may net be ndemnified the Company mantaned a directors and officers hability
tnsurance policy throughout the financial year and o the data of approval of these financal statements

Employment report
The Group aims ta kaep employees aware of all matenal factors affecting them as employees and the performance of the Group and their raspactive businesses It encourages good
communication through regular meetings betwean management and staff enabling senior managers to consult and ascertain employeas’ views on all appropriate matters This 18

supplemented by regular brefings intranet and e-mail bulletins and divisional newsletters Employeas are ancouraged to paricipate In the performance of the Group by way of bonus
schemes

The Group employs over 10 000 pacple We provide extensive traming and career davelopment programmes It 1s our policy to achieve and maintain a high standard of health and
sefety at work and to ensure everyone, regardiess of race religion or sex, and including disabled people where reasonable and practicable Is treated in the same way as regards
applications for employment traiming c¢areer devefopment and promotion  Every effort 1s made {0 help with the rehabilifation of aryone injured dunng therr employment and to provide
support we have an Emplayee Care Programme

Health and safety

As a business the Group 13 strongly committed to providing a safe and responsible place to work Concern for the wellbeing of our staff 18 a key slement m our drive to be *a great place
to work and we demonstrate this commitment through ongoing training and education of all our employees working closely with our insusance providers and equipment suppliers to
ensure sharing of best practice and leading edge health and safety solutions

Supplier payment policy

The Group s policy Is generally to agree terms of payment with suppliers to settle invoices accordingly  The Group s policy 18 generally to agree terms of payment with supplisrs to saitle
invoices accordingly  The Group does not follow any cede or statement on payment practice but it 1s (roup policy that payments to suppliers are nermally made on the basis of the terms
that have baen agreed with them For the Group the average number of days taken to pay suppliers invorces dunng the year was 53 days (2011 54 days) The Company did not trade
dunng the year and does not have any trada payablas

Page 1




Cucina Finance {(UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Directors’ report (conttnued)

Danations

The Group actively supports and encaurages chantabla activity in support of the community Direct donations and support to national and local chantable organisations amounting to
£2,875 (2011 £10 463) and £1 442 (2011 £6 410} respactively, were made in the year Direct donations and support to national chantable organisations duning the year included
£1 000 to the Royal Brhish Legion £975 for Seeing 1s Belisving £500 for Help the Heroes and £400 for Rise Afnica  No donations were made to any political party (2011 £nil)

Land and buildings
The directors consider that there 15 no significant difference between the Group's market value and book value of [and and buildings

Financial risk management

The Group has operations in the UK, the Republic of Ireland France and Sweden and has debt financing which exposes 1t 1o a vanety of financial nisks that include the effects of
changes w foraign currency exchange rates interast ratas credt nsks and hquidity nsk

The Group has in place a risk management programme that seeks to imit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group by using foreign currency debt to hadge overseas
investments i subsidianes, and interast hedging agraements to lmit the impact from potential future interest rate iNcreasas

The Group s board of directors have the responsibility for setting the nsk management palicies appled by the Group The policies are implemented by the central groug treasury
department that raceives regular reports from the operating companies to enabte prompt Wentification of financial nsks so that the appropriate actions may be taken The Group has a
polky and procedures manual that sets out specific guidalines to manage foreign cumrency exchangs risk, Interest rate nsk credit nsk wse of derwatwve and non-denvative financal
instruments and investment of excess hquidity Further information is given in note 17 of these financial statements

(a) Foreign cuirency exchange nsk
The Group has operattons In the UK, the Republic of Ireland, France and Sweden Tha Group is exposed to foreign exchangs nisks pnimarily with respect to the Euro and the Swadish
Krona The Group finance department oversee investment mainly through the use of foreign currency borrowings to hedge the foreign currency Investment

(b} Interaest rate nisk

The Graup has both interest bearing assets and interast bearing liabilities  The Group s interast rate nsk primanly anses from floating interest rate long-term borrowings  Borrowings
1ssuad at variabte rates expose the Group to cash flow interast rate sk Dunng 2012 the Group s borrowings at variable rate were denominated in the UK pound, Euro and Swedish
Krena The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using interest rate caps  Such interest rate caps hava the econemic affact of placing a limit on the maximum interast rate
increase applied at certan future dates  Under the interest rate caps the Group agrees with other parties that for specified future quarterly dates if the market interest rate exceeds the
interast rate cap strike rate the diffarence will be paid {o the Group calculated by reference 1o the agreed notional amounts

{c) Credit nsk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit sk Cradit nisk anses from cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivablas
and committed transactions For banks independently rated partias within the band 'A’ rating are used for main Group banking requirements and wherever possible for subsidiary day to
day operating requirements For customers nsk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial posiion past expenencs and other factors
Individual risk imits are set based on internal or extemnal ratings The Group has implemented policies that require appropnate credit checks on potential customers before salas
commence

(d) Liquidity nsk

The Graup activaly mantans 4 mixture of long-term and short-term facilities that are designed to ensura the Group has sufficient available funds for operations and plannad expangions
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group s liquidhty reserve {comprises undrawn borrowing facility and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flow The
Group maintains Liquidity through avalable cash reserves and undrawn committed bamrowing facilities available pnmarily through its Senior Facilities Agreements The senior barks
monitor the Graup s performance through quarterly covenant tests, with the Group reporting headroom on all covenant testing during the year ended 31 December 2012 and with
management forecasts indicating continued covenant headroom throughout 2013

Independent auditors
PricawatsrhouseCoopers LLP shall remain in office untl the Company or PricewaterhcusaCoopers LLP otherwise determine

Disclosure of information to auditors
So far as the directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit iformation of which the auditors ara unaware and the directors have taken ali steps that they ought to have taken as direclors
n order to make themselves aware of any relavant audit information and to sstablish that the Company’s auditors ara aware of that information

Statement of directors’ responsibilitias
The directors are respons:ble for prepanng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each finantial year Under that law the directors have prepared the group and parent company financial
statements In accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Europaan Union  Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless thay ara satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affars of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period

In preparing these financral statements, the diractors are required to

» select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have beert followad, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements and
prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless It 1s mappropnate to presume that the company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial pesition of the company and the group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companias Act 2005 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and herce for taking reasonable steps for tha prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularties

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

Company registration number 06305253

b Registered office
~ Enterprnise House
R Eureka Business Park
Ashiord
Company Secratary Kent
12 Apnl 2013 TN25 4AG
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Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Independent auditers’ report to the members of Cucina Finance (UK) Limited

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the financial statements ) of Cucina Financa (UK} Limitad for the year ended 31 December 2012 which compnse
tha consohdated income stat t the consolidated statement of comprehensive incorme  ihe consalidated and company statements of financial positon the consolidated and company
statements of changes In equity, the consolidated and company statements of cash flow and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr

preparatien 18 applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and as regards the parent company financial statements as
applied in accordancs with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective rosponsibilities of directors and auditors.
As explained more fully In the statement of directors' respensibilities, as set out on page 2 the directors are responsibla for the preparation of the financial statements and for being

satisfied that they give a true and fair view QOur responsibility 1s lo audit and express an opinion on the financial statements 1N accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Ths report, including the op:nions  has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no

other purpese  We do net in grang these opinions  accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose o 1o any other person 1o whom this report 1s shown of into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consant in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit Invalves cbiaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financal statements sufficient to give reasonabte assurance that the financial statements are free from
materal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whather the accounting policies are appropnate to the group s and parent company's
crcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimatas made by the directors and the ovarall presentation
of the financial statements In addition we read all the financial and non-financial mformation N the annual report to dentfy matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencias we consider the implications for our report

Opinicon on financial statements
In our opinion

« the financial statements give & rue and fair view of the state of the group s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of the group s loss and group's and parent
company's cash flows for the year then ended
- the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union

» the parant company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union and as applied In accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordanca with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2008
in our opinion the information given in the directors repaort for the financial year for winch the financial statements are prepared (s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in raspact of the fellowing matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, 1n aur opinion

= adequate accounting fecords have not baen kept by the parent company or retums adequate for our audit have not been receved from branches not visited by us, ar
» the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums or

+ cartain disclosures of dwectors remuneration specified by law are not made or

= we have not recaived all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Christopher Bums (Senlor Statutery Auditor)

For and on behalf of PricowaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

12 Apnil 2013
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Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial staterments
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Naotes £fm £Em
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 2,887 7 24498
Operating costs {2,879 0) {2,433 3)
Operating profit 3 18 7 165
Anatysad &s
Cperating profit before exceptional tems 427 434
Exceptional items 3 {24 Q) (26 9)
Financs costs 4 {152 &) {137 9)
Finance income 4 10 6 124
Finance costs - net {142 0} (125 5)
Share of profits of associate - 09
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation {123 3) {108 1)
Income tax (charge) / credit 5 {6 4} 264
Loss for the year {129 7} (817}
Loss attributable to
Owners of the parent company 1291) {80 9)
Non-controlling nterest {0 6} (0 8)
(129 7} (81 7)

The notes on pages 12 to 44 fonm an integral part of these financlal statements

The company has elected {o take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 to not present the parent company's income statement The loss and the total
comprehensive expense for the parent company for the year was £14 7m (2011 £1 8m loss)

Page 4




Cucina Finance (UK} Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2 2011

Notes £m £m
Loss for the year (129 7} (81 7)
Other comprehensive income / {axpense)
Currency translation differences 22 02 {03)
Cash flow hedges 22 a1
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking 22 (14 1)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension scheme 18 4 5) (199)
Taxation on items taken directly to equity 5 04 44
Other comprehensive expenss for the year, net of tax (39) (29 8)
Total comprehensive expense for the year {133 6) {111 5)
Attributable to
QOwmers of the parent company (133 0) {1107
Non- g Interest {0 8) {0 8)
Total comprahensive expense for the year {133 6) {111 5)

The nates on pages 12 to 44 form an integrat part of these financial statements
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Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2612

Consolidated statement of financial position

At 31 Decomber 2012

2012 201
Notes Em £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assats
Goodwall 7 8148 8149
Intangible assets 8 78 4 4225
Property plant and equipment 9 1951 1905
Financlal assets - denvative financial instruments 17{0) 086 -
13889 1,427 9
Currant assets
Inventones 11 1121 1017
Trade and other recevables 12 3201 3178
Cash and cash equivalents 13 168 4 1452
€008 564 7
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Fmancial habilhes - borrowangs 16 (50 8) {23 4}
Financial habilities - denvative finangial Instruments 17 {b) - {18}
Trade and other payables 14 {453 2) (396 1}
Current income tax habiittes 15 {0 2) {02)
Prowisions for other habihihes and charges 19 {14) ()]
{505 8) (422 2}
Net current assets 950 1425
Non-current liabilities
Financial labilites - borrowings 16 (1,826 9) (t 7700}
Financial kabilites - denvative financial mstruments 17 {b) 22) -
Trade and other payables 14 (211} {180}
Deferred tax habiites 20 {52 1) {68 5)
Retrement benefit obligatons 18 (63 5) (60 1)
Provisions for other habiliies and charges 19 {113 (114)
{1,977 1} {19300}
Net llabilities {493 2} {359 6)
Equity
Share capital 21 207 207
Other reserves 22 {20 1} (203)
Accumutated deficit 22 {4886 7} {353 5)
Total attributable to owners of the parent company {486 1} {353 1)
Non-contralling interests (71} {6 5)
Totat equity (493 2) (359 6)

The notes on pages 12 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements on pages 4 to 44 wera approved by the Board of Directors on 12 Apnl 2013 and were signed on its behalf by

P Wieland
Director
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Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Company statement of financial position

At 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m £rn £m Em
Assots
Non-current assets
! trents in subsidian 10 {a) 207 207
Trade and other recevables 12 4611 4219
4818 4428
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 12 3402 204 4
Liabilities
Current llabilities
Financial labilites - bomowings 16 {38) 38)
Trade and other payables 14 (23 7) 82
(27 §) (120}
Net current assots 3128 2024
Non-currert liabilities
Financial iabilites - bomowangs 156 (7733) {691 1)
Trade and other payables 14 (211) (19 0y
{784 4) {710 1)
Net assots 02 149
Equity
Share capital 21 207 207
Accumulated defiat 22 (20 8) (58
Total aquity 02 14 §

The notes on pages 12 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements on pages 4 to 44 were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2013 and were signed on ifs behalf by

P Wieland
Director
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Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attnbutable to owners of the parent company

Accumuiated Non-controling Total
Share capital  Other reserves defictt Total interests equity
Notes £m fm £m £m £m £Em
Balance at 1 January 2011 207 (8.0} (257 1) (242 4) 03 (242 1}
Comprehensive income
Loss - - (80 9) (80 9) (0 8) B17)
Other comprehensive (expanse) / income
Currency translation differences 22 B 03 - 03) - 03
Cash flow hedges 22 - 01 - 01 - 01
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme 18 . - (199) (199) - (19 9)
Deferred lax on items taken directly to equity 5 - - 44 44 - A4
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking - (14 1) - (14 1) - (14 1)
Total other comprehensive - (143) {15 5) (29 8) - {20 B}
Total comprehensive expense - (14 3) 964 {1107) {0 8) {(1115)
Transactions with ownars
Non-controlling interest on business comblnation - - - - {6 0) {80)
Total transactions with owners - - - - {6 0} (60)
Balance at 1 January 2012 207 {20 3) {353 5) {353 1) (6 5) (359 6)
Comprehensive income
Loss . - (129 1) (129 1) {06) (1297)
Othar comprehensive Income / (expensa)
Currency translation differences 22 - 02 - 02 - 02
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme 18 - - (45) 45) . (4 5)
Deferred tax on iterns taken directly 10 equity 5 - - 04 04 - 04
Total other compx income / (expense) - 02 {4 1) (39) - (38)
Total comprehensive income / (expense) - 02 (133 2} (133 0) (0 6) {133 6)
Balance at 31 December 2012 207 {20 1) {486 7) (4861) {71) (493 2)

The notes on pages 12 to 44 form an ntegral part of these financial statements
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Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 Decemhber 2012

Company statement of changes in equity

Attributable to owners of the parent company

Accumulated Total
Share capital defict aquity
£m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2011 207 {40} 187
Comprehensive expenso
Loss - {18 {18)
Balance at 1 January 2012 207 {5 8) 14 8
Comprehensive expense
Loss - {14 7} {14 7)
Balance at 31 Decemnber 2012 207 (20 5) 02

The notes on pages 12 to 44 form an integral parnt of these financial statements
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Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 23 1189 1261
Analysed as
Cash generated from operations before exceptional tems 1456 1317
Exceptional items (257) {41 6)
Interest paid 427) (405)
Income tax pad (53 27
Net cash genarated from operating activitlies S 829
Cash flows from invaesting actlvities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {259) (26 5)
Purchase of intangible assets 97 {53)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 157 13
Sale and leaseback of property plant ang equipment 81 -
interest receved 08 03
Acquisition of subsidianes net of cash acquired - {78
Net cash used in investing activities {109) (37 8)
Cash flows from financing activities
Loans to parent undertelongs {03) 08
Transaction costs arsing on obtaining debt finance (15 8) 15
Proceeds from borrowings - 462
Repayment of bomowings (10 6) (23 4)
Finance lease capital repayments (10 6) {69)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (37 3) 136
Net increase in cash and cash equivalants 237 87
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 24 145 2 87 4
Effects of exchangs rate changes {0 5} (09)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 D b 24 168 4 185 2

The notes on pages 12 to 44 form an integral part of these financial staternents
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Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Company statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes

2012

£m

2011

£m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash vused in cperations 23

Net cash used in oparating activities

Net increaso in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eq lents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 D b

The notes on pages 12 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

Page 11



Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 Decomber 2012

Notes to the financlal statements
1 Accounting policies
Genera! information

Thess financisl are the ¢ d financial stat its of Cucina Finance (UK} Limited ( the Group®) and the paren! company financial statements of Cucina Finance {UK)
Limied {"tha Compzany”) for the yesr endad 31 December 2012 These Group consolidated financial stataments wars authensed for issue by the Board of Drectors on 12 Apnl 2013

Significant accounting policles

The Group s principal accountng poficies pted in the preparation of these consclidated financial are set out below These polices have been consistently applied to all
years uriess othermse stated

Basls of preparation

These consolidated financial staterments have been prepared iy accordance with ntemational Financial Reporting Stand: as by the European Union (IFRSs as adopied by
the EU) IFRIC interpretatons and the Companies Act 2006 applicabie to companias reportng undes IFRS The ¢ d fi | have been prepared under the histoncal
o8t convenbion as modified by the revaluaten of land and buildings and financial assats and financal kabilites (including denvatrva nstruments) at fair value through profit or loss

The praparation of these cor d n¢ y with IFRS req the usa of certain cntical accounting sstimates It also requires management to exsrciss its
sudgement in the process of applying the Group s accounting policies  The areas involving a higher degres of judgement or complexity or areas where assumptons and estmatss ars
sigruficant to the lidated financial s} ts are disclosed beiow within cniical sccounting estmates and assumphons

At the year end the Group had net llabiites amounting to £493 2m {2011 £359 8m) and the Company had net assats amounting to £Q 2m (2011 £149m)} The Company s pariof a
finanang group of companies and therafore the gong concem of the company 1s dependant upon the overall going concem of the group  In assessing whether the financial statements
for the Group and Company should ba prepared on the goinp concam basis the directors have considared the future outiook of the Company and of the Group on a combined basis A
fuller anatysis of ifus outiook and the basis for this assessment 13 et out In the financial statements of the largest UK parant company Cucna Lux Investments Linuted Having
considared the future operating profits cash fiows and faciiies available to the Group tha direciors ane satisfied that the Group will have sufficient funds to repay its kabilives as they fal
due On this bas:s the diract it approp to prepare the conzolidated and parent financial statements on the gong concem basis

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are affective for the first time for the financial year baginning on or after 1 January 2012 that would be expected to have a material impact
on the group

(b) New standands and i 1S not yet by the Group
A number of new sxandardn and amendments to standards and interpretatons are effactive for annual periods Deg:nnlng after 1 January 2012 and have not been appiied in preparing
thesa consolid ns None of thess 13 expactad to have a signficant effect on the ¢ d financizl of the group excapt the followng set cut below

Ameandment to IAS 1 Financial statement prasentation regarding other comprehensive income The main change resuttng from thess amendments 18 @ requiremant for entiies to group
tams In other sive incoma (OCI) on tha basis of whather they are potantally reciassdiable to profit or loss subsequently (rectassfication adjustments) The
amendments do not address which items are presented in OC1

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement’ 2:ms (o improve consistency and reduce camplexty by providing a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requrements for use across IFRSs The requirements which are largely zhigned between IFRSa and US GAAF do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where s use 13 already required or pemittad by othar standards within IFRSs or US GAAP

lAS 18 Employee benefits was amended i June 2011 The impact on tha Group will be as follows 10 roverss the reserve hatd for future adminstrabon expensas and to recogmnss them
within operating costs as ncumed and Lo replace interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that 1a calculated by apphang the discount rate to the net
defined benefit labidty For 2012 the impact to the Group of the amendments would have been an increase in net finance costs amounting to £09m  a reduction of £1 2m in the actuarial
loss in the consclidated statement of comprehensive Incoms  the adminiatration expanses reserve raversal would raduce the present value of funded obligatons from £1836m to
£188 Om and the operating profit would be lower due to £0 2m of administraton expense charges

IFRS 9 ‘Financal instrumentis addressas the dassdficaton mseasurement and recognition of financial assets and financal babithes (FRS B was 1ssued in Novamber 2009 and October

2010 It replaces the parts of [AS 39 that reiate to the and vant of financial nstruments |FRS 9 requires financiel assats to be clzaamed INto two n
categories (hose measured a3 st fair value and those measured at smortised cost. The determmation is mads at inthial recognibon  The classification depends on the entity’s businass
rodel for managing its fi | instr and the | cash flow characteristics of the instrument For financal babdites the standard retauins most of the IAS 39 requrements

The man change is that, in cases where the far value option is taken for financial liabdibes the part of a far value change due to &n enbty's own credit nsk i1s recorded in ather
comprehansive Income rather than the consohidated income statement uniess this creates an accounting mismatch The Group I8 yet to assess IFRS &' full impact and intends to adopt
IFRS 8 no later than the accounting penod beginnng on or after 1 January 2015 subject lo endorsemaent by the EU The Group will aiso consier the impact of tha remaining phasas of
IFRS 8 when complated by the Board

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements builds on existing principles by sdentfying the concapt of control as the determining tactor in whather an entity should be includad within the
cor financial of the parent company Tha standard prowides addibonal gudance to assist in the determination of control where this 1s difficult to assass The Group i
yet to assess [FRS 10's fufl impact and intends 1o adopt IFRS 10 no later than the accounting penod beginning on or after 1 January 2013

IFRS 12 Disclosures of nterests in other enttiss INcludes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interasts in other entt:es Inchuding joim arangements associates special
purpose vehicles and other off balance sheat vehicies The Group is yet to assess IFRS 12's full impact and intands to adept IFRS 12 no later than the accountng panod Beginning on or
after 1 January 2013

There are no other IFRSs or (FRIC interpratations that are not yet effactrve that would be axpectad to have a material impact on the Group

{a) Subsxdaries

Thess ¢ hdated fi 1] - Edate the fi ia] statements of the C: y and all its idiary underiakngs Subsidianes ncude spacial purpose entibes where tha
substancs of the nelabonshep between the Group and the special purpose entity indicates thit it 1s controlled by the Group  Subsihianies are aY entties (including special purpose enities)
avar which the Group has the power t0 govern the finandal and operstig policies generally acc g e of more than one half of the voting nghts  The axistence and
effect of potental voting rights that are cumently or cof ble are i whan ] the Group controls artty are fully

from the date on which contral 1a transfermed to the Group They are de-consctidated from the date that control ceases

The Group uses the acquisition methed of accounting to account for business combinations Tha consideration transferrad for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the faur valus of the assets
trar the liaby d and the equity interests issuad by the Group The considerabon transferred inciudes the fair value of any assets or kability arising from a conbngent

el g it A rolated costs are expensed as ncurmed  Identfisble assets acquired and liabil and . kabd assumed in 8 business combination
ammuumdwnanyalmurrazrvahmntmmwawndm On an acquisiion-by-acquisition basis moGrouprocogmmmynon—conwum interest in the acures erther at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest's proportonate share of the acquings's nat assets

The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of any non-controfling interest in the acquiree and the acquisibon-data fair value of any previous equity interast in the acquires
over the far value of the Group a share of the identfisble net assets acquired 18 recorded as goodwill If this is lasa than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargan purchase, the diffarence s recognised directly in the cor staternent of P nceme

For transachons with entites under common control the avadable exempton from IFRS 3 Businesa Combinations' is taken and the predecessor method of accounting 18 used Tha
wentifiable assets and liabiites are maasured &t ther pre-Combination camying valua ncuding any p y consolidated dwill any differencas on consobdabon (18 between the
cost of nvestmant and the camyng value of the net assets) are mcogrused i squity in retained eamngs mwnmsmmmmmmwmmmmm
the business combxnation between enttes undsr common condrol occurred
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Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes to the financial statements
1 Accounting policies {continued)

Basls of consaildation [continued)

Unrform ac across the group  Inter-company transactions balances and unreaksad gains on transachons between Group compamnes ere elimnated
Unrealisad lossas srs atso eilmmated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impainent of tha asset transferred

{b) Tr cin and i 2

The Group treats transachons wrth non-eontrdhnq interests as transachons with equity owners of the Group  For purchases from non-controling witerests the difference batween any
congideration pald and the relevant share acquired of the camying vatue of net assets of tha subsidiary 1s racorded i equity ams or lossas on disposals 1o non-controlling intarests are
also recorded i equity

Whon the Group ceases {0 have contrel or significant nfluence any retained interest in the entty s remeasured to its fair vafts wath the changs in camying amount recognised in the

ncome Tha fair value s the intial camying amount for the purposes of subseguently accountng for the retaned interest In the associate joint ventura or financial
asul In addibon any amounts previousty recogrised In other comprehenaive income in respact of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or habihtes This may mean that amounts pravicusly recognised in other comprahansiva income are rectass:fied lo the conschdated ncome statement

ft the ownership in an associate 1s reduced but significant influence 18 retained only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recegnised in cther comprahansive income are
reclassified to the cor d incomae st whare appropriate

{c) Associates
Associates are all enttes over which the Group has significant influsnca but not control generally accompanying a shareholding of betwsen 20% and 50% of the votng rights
Invagiments in associates ana accounted for using the equity methed of accounting and are inttially recognised at cost.

The Group 8 share of it$ associates' post-acguisibon profits or losses s recognised in the consolid incoma statement and its shane of post acquisition mevementa in other
comprehensive INCoMe 1S recognisad m other comprehensive income The cumulative post acquisition movements are adusted against the carrying amount of the investment When
the Group's share of losses in an associate squals of exceads s ntarest in tha asscciate the Group does not recognise further losses uniass it hes ncurred obligations or made
paymants on behalf of the assocate

Unrealised gains on transactons batweent the Group and its associates are eliminated Lo the extent of the Group s int tin the Ui lossas are also eiminated uniess
the transaction provides ewidence of an impaimment of the asset transfermed Accountng policies of assocates have been changed whers necessary 10 ensure consisiency with the
sccountng policiss adopted by the Group

Dxluton gains and losses ansing In Mvestments in assocates are necog! d In the id INCOMme 1t

Revenue

Revenue compnses the farr value of the considerabon recarved or recervabie for the sale of products and services includng anallary revenuas net of valug added tax rebates and
diseounts and after ekmuinating sales within the Group

Ravenue i3 recogrised when the Group has delvered the products or service has transfermed to the buyer the significant nsks and rewards of ownership and when 1t is considered
probable that the related receivable 18 coll b and d and rcog wiwen the Group has delivered the producis and services and when s considered probable
that the obhgaton 1s recervable or payable respectvely

Segmental information

Although the Group 13 not required to apply IFRS 8 'Operatng Seg vl i 1 has been provided as follows - the Group s pnmary reporting format is business
segments and its secondary format 1s gaographical sag Ab isa I it of the Group that 1s engaged n providing a group of related products and 8 subject to
fisks and raturns that are different from those of cther business sagments A geographical sagment 1s a component of tha Group that cperates within a particular aconomic anvironmant
and that Is subject 1o nsks and retuns that are different from those of camponents operating in other economic environmants

Segmant rasults include revenue and expenses which are diractly attributable to or can be all d to the onar ble basis Seg assets and liabilites ars thoss
operabng assets and llabiibes directly attnbutable to a s8gment or can be to the tona ble basis

Exceptional items

Where items of income and expense included In the consolidated income statement are considered to be matenal and exceptianal In nature ssparate disclosure of their nature and
amount is provided i the financial statements These items ere classified as sxceptional tems The Group considers the 8ize and nature of an e both individually and when
aggregated with similar tems when considenng whether it Is material
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Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes to the financial statements
1 Accounting policles {continued)

Proparty, plant and squipment
Property plant and equipment 1s shown at historical cost or valuation less subsaquent depreciabon and imparment

Cost represents invoicad cost plus any other costs that are directly aitributable 1o the acquision of the item  Tha Group captalises borrowang costs dirsctly attnbutable to the acquisibon
constructon or producton of a qualfying asset as pant of the ¢ost of that esset and for non-qualifying assels charges borrowing costs to the consolidated income statament

Subsequent costs are included in the assat's carmying amount or recognised as a separats assat, as appropnate onty wher it 18 probabla that futwe benefits associated with
the item wall flow 1o the Group and the cost of the tem can be relably measured All other repairs and maintenance are charged 1o the consolidated income statement dunng the financial
year in which they are incurred

No depreciabon is provided on freahold tand

Depreciation 1s provided on all other property plant and equipment to wnte down their cost or where their usetul aconomic lives have been ravised ther campng amount at the date of
rewvision to thew estmated residual values on a straight ine basis over the perods of their astimated o revised remaning useful economus ives respectively  These lives are considered
to ba

Frashold builld:nga - between 17 and 40 years

Leasshold buldings - the perod of the [ease or 40 years whichever is the shorter
Motor vehicies - betwaen 5 and 10 ysars

Plant and equipment - between 3 and 40 years

Informatbien technology hardware + batwaen 3 and 5 years

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed dunng each financial year An assat's camying amount is wntten down immadiataly to its recoverabls amount if the assat’s carmyng amount
|s greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Profits and losses on disp a4 d by the proceeds with the camying amount and are recogrused within the cor ncome

' ts In subsidlart
Invesiments n subsiciaries held as non-current assets are accounted for at cost lass a proviaon for any impairment in value  Cost s adjusted to reflect changes in consideraticn ansing
from contingent consideration amendments Cost also includes directly atinbutable costs of investments I the diractors consider that fair value of investmants in subsidianas are balow
their camrying value then a prowviskon for impaiment would Ba made

Intanglble assets

(2) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of tha cost of an acguisition over the fair value of the Group s share of the net identfiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is ncluded in iIntangible assats’ Gaodwill 8 not 3ubject to annual amartisabon but 1s instead testad annually for impairment and carned at cost
less accumulated impairment losses !mpaumment losses on goodwill are not reversed

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of impanment tastng  The alocation 18 made to those cash.generating units that are expecied to benefit from the busineas
cambination mn which the goodwil arose

{b) Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised as an intangible asset on the bass of the costs incured to acquire and bring into use the specific software Directly attnbutabie
costs associated with the development of software that are expected to generate future scononuc benefits are capitalised as part of computer software

Where soft costs are cap d they are amortised using the straight-ine basis to wite them down to their astimated realisable valua over their sstmated usaful economic Iives
which are considered to be between threa and fiva yaars

The residual value and usaful sconomic Lfe am reviewed and adjusted f appropriate at each dats of the of financtal

{c) Cust " and rek hip
Customer contracts and relatonships are acquired separatety or as pan of a business comtination

For thoze customar contracts or relationshups acquired separately an iv
with any directly attnbutable costs of acquinng the assst.

g assel s rec d on the basis of the costs to acquire tha custamer contracts and ratabonships togather

For thosa cusiomer contracts and relaticnships acquired as part of a business cormbination the fair valus of the asset 1s recognised at the date of the acquisibon n accordance with IFRS
3 (revised)}

Customer contracts and relatonships are amortsed on @ straight [ine basis over ther expeactad useful aconomic Iives which are considered to ba between 8 and 18 years Thesa are
assumed to have no residual value at the end of ther expected usaful economic ife

(d) Brands
Brands are acquirad saparately or as part of a business combination

For those brands acquired separataly an intangibie assat is recognised on the basis of the costs 1o acquire the baands together with any direclly attnbutable costs of acguing the asset.
For thoss brands acquired as part of a business combination the far value of the asset is recogmsad at the date of the acquision, in accordance with IFRS 3 (revised)

Brands are amovtisad on a straght line basis over ther expectad useful sconomic ives which are considered to ba 25 years These are assumed (o have no resciual valus at the end of
thewr expected useful aconomic lfe

Impalrmant of non-financiat assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful economic Iife are not subjact to amorisation and are tested annuatly for impaiment.  Assets that are subject to amortsation are reviewed for
impaiment whanaver avents or changes in crcumstances indicate that the camrying amount may not be recoverabla An impairmant loss is racogmsad for the amount by which the
asset’s camying amount axcasds s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's far value less costs to sell and value i use For the purposas of assessing
umpaiment, assats are grouped &t the lowest lavels for which there ara teparately identfiable cash flows (Cash-generatng unis)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Provision 1s made for obsolete and slow-moving items  Cost compnses direct purchase costs and ovarhsads that
have teen incusred in bringing the inventories to their present locaton and condivon  Diect purchase cost is caiculated on a weighted average cost basis  Net realisable value
represents the estmatad salling pnce less all costs of comp end costs to be incurmed in marketing selling and dustributon
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Notes to the financlal statements

1A " T1ed an

10 pallcies {cor

Trade recalvablas

Trade receivables are recogrised inibally al far valus and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment (s astablished when thera
13 objective avidence that the Group wilt not be able to collact all amounts due according to the original terms of recelvables Signdicant financial difficutias of the debtor probability that
the dabtor will enter banksuptcy of financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 2 months overdue) are considersd ndicators that the trade recervable 1s
impaired  The amount of the provision is the aifferenca between the assets carrying amount and the present value of astimated future cash flows discountad at the eriginal effactive
interest rate  The carrying amount of the asse! 15 reduced through the use of a trade recervables imparment account, and the amount of tha loss 1s necognised In the consolidatad
income statement within direct purchase cost. When a trade recervable 13 uncollectable i 18 written off against the trads recervables i 1t account Jemit recovenss of
amounts praviously wntten off are credited in the consclidated incoma statement

Trade receivables - factored
Where the Group has sokd trads recervables (¢ & third party with the Group to bear tha nsks and rewards of 1hase amounts

Cash and cash equivatants

Cash and cash equivalents compnsa cash at bank (baing the cash book balance) and in hand shori-tsrm deposits and othar short-lerm highly liquid nvestments with original matuntes
of three months or less held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments  Bank overdrafts are p ted i current to the extent that there 1s no nght of offset with
cash balances

Current and deferred Income tax

The curment incoma tax charge s calculatad on the basis of the lax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial position Management penodically
evaluates pesitions taken in tax returns with respect to in which tax regulation is subject to interp and lishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expecied io be paid {0 the tax authontes

Deferrad income tax 13 provided in full using the hability method on temporary differences ansing between the tax base of assets and liabikibes and their carmying amounts In the financal
statements However the deferred income tax 1s not accounted for if t anses from initial recognition of an asset or liability 111 a transachon other than a business combination that at the
tima of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loas Deferred income tax i determined using tax rates (and laws) thal have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the date of the statement of financial positon and are expected to apply when the related defermed income tax asset is realisad Deferred income tax 1s measured cn an undiscounted
basts

Deferred tax assats are recognised to the exiant that it is probable that taxable profitt will ba avalable against which the temporary differences can be utihsed

Employes banefits

Defined benefit pension plan

The Group ¢perates a defined benefit funded pension scheme covering a number of its employees The scheme I3 a contracted out defined banafit scheme proviting finat satary related
benefits accrued for each year of serice The scheme was made fully paid up at 31 Decamber 2003 and no further benefits are accrung to members subsequent o this date

The charge in the cor ncome in respect of the defined benefit pension scheme comprises the interest charge on pension liabiies offsat by the expected return on
pension schema assats and  recog d i Interast payable and simiar charges and interest racenable respectvely

The lability recogl n the st of 6 | n raspect of the defined benefit pension schema is the present valus of the defined benefit obligaton at the date of the
statement of financial postuon less the fair value of l.he plan assets The independent actuary using the projected unit credit method and assumptens agreed with the trustees and
directors calculates the definad benefit obligation annually The prasent valus of the defined benefit obligation 13 determined by discountng the estmated future cash flows uaing interest
ratas of high-quality corporate bonds that have termns to matunty approximating to the terms of the related pension liabity

Actuanal gains and lossas anse from expsneénce adjustments {the effecis of differsnces between previous actuanal assumphons and what has actually occurred) and changas in
actuanal assumptions  Actuarial gains and losses ara racogrised in full 10 the year thay occur 1n the statement of comprehensive income

Defined contribution plan
For defined contnbuton plans the Group pays contnbubons to Group money purchasa pension plans on a contractual baus The Group has 06 further payment ebligations once the
contnbutons have been pait  The contnbutions are recogrised as an employee benefil expense when they are dus

Provisions

Provisions are formed for legally enforceable or constructive obligations existing on the date of the statement of financal positon the settiemeant of which is Lkely to requins cutflow of
rasourcas and the extent of which can be rellably d Where to the 1ts provisions are discounted over tha Lfa of therr expectad cash flows

Trada payablas

Trade payables are non interest-beanng and are stated at amortised cost

Leasses
Leases in which a signficant porbon of the riaks and rewards of ownership are transferrad to the Group are classdiad as finance legses

Assets acquired under finance leases are included in the statement of financial position as property plam and equipment and are daprac.lated ovar the shorter of therr useful lives and the
lease term  The capiial element of future rentals i3 treated as a kabiity Rentals ara apporboned b 1 of the resp bl ard finance charges which are dealt with
under finance costs in the lidated income it

Rentals paid under operating leases (those leases whars a signdficant porbon of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the laasor) are charged o the consotidated income
siatement over the term of the lsase

Foreign curmencles
ltems included m the financial statements of the Group s subsidiary companies am measured using the currency of the primary sconomuc snvironment in which the subsidiary oparates
( the funchonal currency’y The ¢ hdated financal 3 are presented In sterling, which 13 the Group and Company’s functional and presentationzl cumrency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency usirng the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions

MonetaryaswsandIubvlitleldermunmpdmfomgnmrmncnsmtmnslatadmmunrelavamfmcnonalwmncymthamtssofexd\angemﬁngmmnmdmocmmol

financial position  Driferences ansing on translabon are charged or o the d income siat nt except when deferrad in equity as qualfyng cash flow hadges or
quaifying net investment hadges
Tha income of foreign Y ¢ nto sterling at monthly average exchange ratas and the of fi | tion ars d at the

ummmmmmmmmwmesmlammofﬂnamm On consolidaton ommadmmammmmmmdmutmmWMMmmwbm
and of borrowings designated as hedges of such nvestments ane taken (o shareholders equity  Thesa exchange differencas ara disclosed as a separats component of shareholders
equity within other reserves

Goodwili and far value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are trested as assets and habiities of the foreign antity and translated at the closing rate
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Notes to the financial statements
1 Accounting policles (continued)

Borrowings and finance costs
Bomowangs are recogrised intially at far valus being the lssus proceeds net of any transaction costs ncurred

Borrowings &ne subsequently measured at amorhsed cost using the sffective interest method Amortsad cost 13 adjusted for the amortsabon of any transacton costs  The amortsation
13 recognised in financa costs Transacton cosis are amortised over the expected term of the related financial instrumnents

All bormrowings denorinsted iIn curenaies other than sterling are translated at the rats ruting at the date of the statement of financial posthon

Bomowings are classified as curent llatiities unless the Group has an unconditional nght to defer settlsment of the liability for at leas! twelve months after the date of the statament of
financial posibon

Finance Income

Finance INcome 13 ] d on a tme-prop basis using tha sffective interest method

Financial assats

The Group dasslﬁos s ﬁnanclsl uael: In the followang category loans and bl The class:h 18 basad on the purpose for which the financal assets were acqured
s the ¢ of i£3 financial assets at inubal recognrton

Loana and blas are non-deri financial asssts with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In an active market They ara mcluded in current assets except for

matunbesa greater than 12 months after the date of the statement of finencial pesiton  These are classified as non-cument assets The Group 8 loans and recevables compnse trade
and other recervables and cash and cash equivalents in the statemant of financial posiion

Derivative fimancial instruments.
Tha Group usas derivative financial instruments pnncipally intarest rate swaps to manage the interast rais risk on intarest paymants The Group doss not use denvative financial
instruments for speculative purposes

Denvatuves are mually recognised at far velue on tha date a denvative contract is antered into and subsaquently re-measurad at far value The maethod of recognising the resulbng gain
or loss depends on whether the denvative is dasignated a8 a hedging instrument and if 30 the neture of the tem being hedged The Groug designates cantain denvatives as either

- hedges of a parbcutar nsk associated with a recognised asset or Eabdity or a highty p lo for d iransachon (¢ash fiow hadge) or
- hedges of a net nvestment in a foreign operation {net investment hadge)

The Group documents at or near to the inception 0f the transaction the ralatonship between hadging nstrurnents and hedged itama as well as is risk managament objecuves and
strategy for undertaking vanous hedging transacuons The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception 2nd on an ongoing bans of whether the dertvatives that are
used i hedging tra: are highly eft n off: g changas in cash fiows of hedged itams

The tair value of derivatrve instruments usad for hadging purposas are disciosed in note 17 (&)  Movements on the hedging reserve i shareholders equity ars shown in note 22 The full
faur value of a hedging denvative Is classfied as a non-cumrent assat or kability when the rematnung maturity of the hedged tem I1s mora than one year and as a current assat or habilty
when the remaining matunty of the hedged rtem 1s less than one year

(&) Cash flow hedge
The effactiva portion of changes in the farr value of denvatives that are designated and quallfy as cash flow hedgas is recogrusad in equity The gain or (oss ralating to the ineffactive
portion is recognised Immediately in ‘finance costs - net' in the consolidated income statement.

Amounts accurmutated 1 equity are recycled in the consolidated income statement in the penods when the hedged item affects profit or loss The gan or 1088 relating to the effaciive
portion of interest rats swaps hedging variabis rate bonowings is racognisad i the cansohdated income statement within finance costs - nat’  The gan or loss relating to the ineffactive

portion of interast rata swaps hedging vanable rate bomowings 18 recognised In the ¢ lidated income statement within fingnce costs - net

‘When a hedging instrument expwas or is sold or where a hadge no longer mesis the cntena for hadge accounting any cumutative gan of loss @xistng In equity at that tme remains in
equity and I3 recogrised whan the forecast transaction 18 . d i the ¢ lidated income stat: it When a forecast transaction 18 no longer expected to occur the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity 18 iImmediately hanaferred to the consolidated within finance costs - net’

() Net investment hadge

Hedges of netir s in foreign op are d for similarly to cash flow hedgas

Any gan or loss on the hedging inatrument reiating to the effectve porton of the hadge 8 recogrised in equity The gam or loss relating to the neff portion 18 recognised
immediately tn the consolidated ncome statement within finance costs - net’

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are Included in the 1 incoma when the {oreign operation is partally disposed of or sold

Shara capital

Where the Company Issues shares or other financial nstruments thess financal nstruments are classified as a finandial Labiity financial assal o equity according to the substance of
the contractual amangement cr its component parts  Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of new shares are shown in the same respective category o which the costs
relate DCividends or interest ansing on such financial Instruments are recogmsed according to the classrication of the financial instrument

Critlcal accounting astl and tprtl
Tha Group makes sstmates and assumphons conceming the futire  The resulhng accounbng will, by defi 1 seldom equal the related actual results The estmates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year ere discussed below

(a) Estmated impaxment of goodwﬂ'
The Group tests Ty wh @ has suffered any impainment, in accordanca with the accountng policy stated above The recoverable amounts of cash-generatng units have
been d based on val 38 calculations These calculations require the use of estimates (see nots 7}

A sensitrvity anatysis has been performed on the key assumptions used for assassing the goodwill The directors have concluded that in the case of Broadine UK, Broadine Continental
Europe (for turther details on what compnses Broadine see note 7 to the financial statements) and Country Chawce there 18 no imparmant beacuss they have headroom of recoverable
amounts in exceass of camying values of 329% (2011 28%) 222% (2011 185%) and 88% (2011 80%]) respactrvely and it is considered that thers are no reasonably pessible changss in
kay assumptions which wou!d causs the camying ameunt of goodwll 19 exceed its velus-n-use There 1s no gooawill bewing carried in tha consolidated statement of financial posiion at 3t
December 2012 for the M&.) Seafood CGL! as this has previously been impaired

Page 18




Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statemonts
For the year anded 31 December 2012

Notes to the financial statoments

1 Accounting policles (continued)

Critical g9 and lons inued)

{b) Esbmated impawment of brands and ntracts and

In addiion to tesbng annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment the Group also tasts annually for the M&.) Seafood CGLU f brands and customer contracts and relationstups
have sufferad any impairment

A sensitinity analysis has been performed on the key 18 used for the brands and customer contracts and redaticnships  The direciors have conciuded that for M&J
Seafood they have headroom of recoverable amounts 1n excess of carrying values of 30% and it 13 considered that there are no reasonably poasible changes in key assumptions which
would causé the carrying amount of brands and customer contracts and ralabonships to exceed ther value-in-uss

(c) Emplayes — defined p big

Following the amendment 1o |AS 1% Employea Bensfits issued in Dacember 2004 the Group has adoptsd an accounting policy whereby actuanal gans and lossas for the UK defined
benefit panson scheme are taken through the statemant of comprehensrve Income in full each year and the fuil defict on an IAS 18 basis is included within the statement of finanaial
position

Tha defined benefit pension chiigation has been calculated by the scheme actuary for each reporting date using the projectad unit credit method and assumptions agread with the Group
(#20 note 18)

One of the key assumptions used in determining the valuation at 31 December 2012 13 the UK discount rate of 4 7%  Whitst the directors consider that the adopton of a 4 7% discount
rate 1s appropnate if the rate used had besn 0 2% higher or lower the retrement benefit obligabion would have been apprecamately £7 1m lower or hugher  Another key assumpton used
n determinng the valuabon is the mortalty assumpbon  if the average ife y I years of p retnng was 1 year higher or lower than that uzed in the valuaton the
retremant benefit chligaton would have been approximatety £4 8m higher or lower

{d)} Income taxas - defarmed laxation

The group s subject 1o incoms taxes In numerous unsdictions  Signicant judgment is required in detarmenng the group's provision for deferred taxabon  There am catamn caleulations
for whuch the ultmate tax determunation 18 uncertan  The group recognises fizbiities and assats for antcipated tax ssues based on astmates of whether addibonal taxes will be dus or
recoverable Vvhere the final outcoms of these mattars 1a differant from tha amounts that were initiatly recorded such differences will impact the curment and deferred income tax assets
and liabiities in the period in which such determinaton is made

A deferred tax assat of £5 4m 15 recogrused in respect of certain UK tax losses  The key assumphon ussd in récogniton of this asast i3 basad upon managament's foracasts for taxabla
profits for the next three years and the assumption that the losses will be available for utiisaton i management's forecasts were 10% highar or lower then the deferred tax asset woukd
be £0 5m higher of lower and income taxes in the consolidated income statement would be £0 5m lower or higher respectively  If the tax jossss wam subsequantly found not io be
available for utisation against taxable profits then the deferred tax asset would no longer be recognised and there would ba a charge of £5 4m in income taxes In tha consobdated
ncome statement

(e} Funding Bquxitly going concem and covenant compiiance

The Group actively maintains a mixture of long term and short-termn laciibies that are designed to ansure the Group has sufficient available funds for operations and planned expansions
Management montors roling forecasts of the Group s liquidity reserve (compnises undrawn borrowing faciity and cash and cash squivalents) on the basis of expected cash flow The
Group maintains hquidity through avaitable cash resarves and undrewn committed bomowing faciites avalable pamanly through ts Senior Faclibes Agreements The senior banks
monitor the Group s performance through quarterty covenant fests wath the Group feporting headroom on all covenant testing dunng the year ended 31 Decamber 2012 and with
management forecasts (ndicaung continued covenant headroom throughout 2013

In assessing whether the financial statements for the Group ars prepared on the going concam basis the directors have consicdensd the future outiook of the Group  Having considered

the future operating profits cash flows and faclibes avalable 1o the Group the directors are satisfied that the Group will have suffient funds to repay its liabilites as they fall due
Consequently the financial statemants are prepared on the going concam basis
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Cuclina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the ysar ended 31 December 2012

Notes to the financial statemonts
2. Segmental information

Primary rep @ format  Busi,

ux France Swaden Total Eliminations Group
For the yasr ended 31 December 2012 £m Em Em £m Em £m
Oparations
Revenue - exiemal customers 1,554 0 5099 4338 2,897 7 28077
Ravenue other business segments 39 - 89 {8 9) -
Segment opérating profit 131 44 12 187 17
Andlysad as
Segment result befors exceptional tems 42 53 32 427 427
Exceptional ilsms 211} 0% 20) {24 0} {24 0]
Finance costs {1528)
Finance incoms 108
Finance costs - net {142 0)
Loss bafore tax {123 8)
income {ax income (5 4)
Loss for the year {19 71)
Segmeont assets 14226 2383 1158 17744 - 17744
Unallocated asssiy
Il assets [dertvath P 048
amounts owed by parent undenakings 481
cash and cash equivalents 1634
Total asasts 1,933.5
Segment (labilities Wos Mo 841 5187 5187
Unaliocated liabilties
financial llathlties (darivative financlal instruments) 22
curment tax lLabiities 62
deferred lax liabiltjes 521
amounts owed 1o paren undertakings 250
other payabtes. [ X ]
bomowings 18777
Total fabilities 2,4027
Gther segment items
Capnal axpendrtune (property plant and
equipment and intangible assets) a4 ne 27 597 - 597
Depreciation 229 84 32 2.5 - Ere]
Amortisation of intangible assets
branda TS (1] 01 as a5
niracis and P M4 31 04 1 »1
computer softwars a7 12 12 T1 T1
[l i of radar ivabl 19 12 05 48 - 48
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Notas to the financial statements

2 i " "
UK France Sweden Total Eliminations. Group

For the year snded M December 2011 £m Em £m £m m £m

Operstions

Revenus extemnsl customors 18015 5140 1343 24498 24438

Rovenus other business segmenis 49 01 50 (50

_Segmert operating profit 48 108 11 185 185

Analysed as

Segment result before exceptional tems 31 to8a 15 434 434

Excsptional tems {28 3) 02 {04 (28 5y {28 9

Financa costs {137 9)

Finance incoms 124

Financs costs - net {125 5)

Share of profits of associate 09

Loss bafore tax (108 1)

Income tax incoma 264

Loss for the vear 81N

Segment asssts 14515 2240 08 e 1784 4 - 17844

Unaliocated assels

- financlal assats (dertvative inancial instruments) -

« amounts awsd by parent undertakings 630

» cash and cash equivalents 1452

Total asssts 18926

Segmant iabitties 069 855 713 4838 483 8

Unzliocated llabiliies

et inst nts) 18
cument tax Habilties 02
defermed tax llablities 645
amounts owed to parent undertakinga 27
olher payablas 18
corporate borrowings 1,793 4
Total liabtitias 23522
Other segment tems
Capngl expenditure {property plant 2nd
equipment and intangible assets) 287 98 09 394 g4
Depreciation 27 35 09 271 271
Amottiaation of ntangible sssets .

- brands 78 08 a4 84
customer contracts and relationships 321 a2 a1 A% 4 asd4
computer xaftware 50 08 LR ] 58 50

Impairment of trade raceivables 31 08 03 42 42

Allocated segment assets comprise goodwill £614 8m (2041 £814 5m) intangible assets €378 4 (2011 £422 5m) property pant and equipmen £185 1m (2011 £180 5m} inventories
£112 1m {2011 E101 7m) and trade and other recervables E274 Om (2011 £254 Bm)

trade and other payables and of £442 5m (2011 £391 Bm) provisions for other liabilites AN charges of £12 7m (2011 £12 1m) and retiremant
benafit obligations of £683 5m (2011 £80 1m)

(nformation for the Republic of Iretand operations is includad within the UX business segment and In the UK grnent as the are not for separste
disclosure
8, ¥ rep g format - geograp
UK Coatinental Europe Unaliocated assets / (labiltles) Group
012 2001 2012 201 012 2011 2012 201
£m £m Em £m £m £m Em £m

Continving operations
Revenus products 1,984.0 18015 7 8483 - 28977 24498
Segmerit assets 14228 14815 3518 29 2151 2082 19895 19928
Segment liebiltios {350 6} {308 9) (16a1) (1589 {1,904 0} {18084) {2482 7) 23522
Capital expanditure 44 287 253 107 - 597 394

The revenus analysis in tha teble above |s based on the location of the customer which Is not materially differant from the [ocstion where the order is received and whara (he assels sre
located

Company
The Company's busineas s to invest and then provide finance 1o s subsidiarias and operates in a singls segment
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3 Operating profi

2012 2011
£m £im
Revenus 28977 244980
Direct purchase cost 217 1) {1848 5)
Trading prmofit 4308 6013
Distribution snd selling costs {505 8) (441 B)
Gross profit 1748 1595
Administrative axpsnsas {78 4) {8 4)
Excaptonal tems (see below} {24 0) {26 9)
Amortisation of intangible 8ssets  brands and customer contracts and relationships {48 8) 43 8)
Amortisation of intangible asssts computer softwars 71} 58
Total administrative axpenses {158 1) {143 07
Group operating profit 187 185
Opesrating profil is armived at after charging / (crediling) £m £m
Employes benelit sxpense (nots 25) WL 2883
Inventories
cost of g as #n exp In direct purchase cost) 272 18408
write downs and losses incurmed in the year 43 7Q¢
Amaortiaation of irtangible assets brands and customer contracts and reletionships 4886 438
Amartisation of intangible xssats compmel saftware T L]
Deprecistion of y plant and eq
owned asssts 222 212
assets hald under finance leases 103 58
{Profit) / loss on sale of property plant and equipmant [ER.1] 02
Qther cperating leass rantzis paysble
- plant and machinery 148 164
- property 198 128
Repairs and mair on property plant and equipmant s 243
Trade receivables Impllrmum 4.8 42
Exteptional items
Buuneu chlnqu costs 84 105
g of the UK i network 87 12
Other UK nlstruuurlng and other costs 17 25
Brake France Service SAS restructuring costs 09 02
Menigo Foodservice AB restructuring costs 16
Trlnsadiun costs 3s 04
posal of Browns Foodservh 11
_Imﬂggomnlmndslm customer contracts and relationships - 121
Totzl exceptional tems 240 2569

Business change costs
Sigruficant business change costs amounung 1o £8 4m (2011 £10 5m) have been incurrsd during the year primanly on axtemal consultancy projects delivering fundamantal business
change and cpesational restructure acioss the group

Resiructuring of the UK distibution network

Rewuc(umc has taken place in the VK in order (© redovelop the distribution network and Infristructure with costs in the year amounliing to £6 7Tm (2091 E12m) Dunng the
lon of this a [argo number of one-off costs are being incumad and a dedicated team of Brakes employees havs been recruted to manage the project The
costs il refated to project management costs (he closure of depota snd the restructuring costs relate to redund. and other P

Costs incurned durlng the period prior to Closure and also costs in relation ta stan up and dual running costs when opening and closing depots Durinq 20112 a new dapot In Ruding wu

opened and 3 depols were closad  Also In 2012 a decision has been made to butlc a new distribution centre in Warmngton wath completion in 2013 The costs incurrad i 2011 pnmarily

reiated to the development of a new depot i1 Reading

Other UK restructunng and cther costs
Other UK restructuring costs of £1 Tm {2011 £2 Sm) primarily include redundancy costs incurmed from a UK headcourd reduction programmae  In respect of rmdundancy cost whers siaff
have been notfied of helr redundancy duning the year a full accrual is made tor then tosts from the date of nolfication and theis tosls ars tassified as sxcapbonal dsms

Brake France Seivice SAS restrucfuring costs
Braka France Servics SAS incumed restructuring costs of £0 8m (2011 £0 2m) in retstion to roles p

ly d from (he busi during the year

Menigo Foodservice AD restructuring costs
Monigo Foodsarvice AB Inturred restructuring costs of £1 Bm in relation 1o roles permanently reméved from the business during the yesr

Transachon costs
Tmnsaclion ¢osts am foc professional Ind legal fees mcumed by advisors acting on behalf nnho Group In 2012 r.octs lrnaunungtn £3 6m (2011 £04m) were incumed including
transaction fees invoiced for pror ysars b lon feos for and incentlve schame consutting advics and

nlso fees incurred in cansidering potential markel oppartunities  During 2011 the costs ncumed ware from consl g P markal oppoﬂunmal

Loss on disposal of Browns Foodservicd
Folicwing & tharough review of ihe Browns Foodiarvics operation it was decided during the year to s4ll tha busi fing in A kuss on disposal of £1 1M
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3 Oparating prefit {continued)

Audit sarvicas
During the year the Group (including s the services irom the Group s suditors and its assoclates at ihe folowing costs
Fees payable 1o the Comparry's auditor and ds associztes for the audit of the perent and cor it to £15 000 (2011 £15000) Fess payabls
1o the Company’s audior and i3 associates for sther services ane detaded as follows

2012 2011
Othar sarvices £m £m
The sudit of the comparny’s parent and subsidiary undertakings s o7
Tax compliance servica 02 02
Cther non-audt services 01 01

03 10

The Group s auddors aiso scied as auditors (o the Brake Bros pic Pension Schems and the Brakes Money Purchase Pension Plan  The appoitment of gudtors to thess schemes snd the
fees paid are agreed by the Trustess of sach scheme who act incl ¥ tn the ] of the Group  The aggregate fess charped were £22 500 (2011 £26 750)

4 Flnance costs - net

2012 2011
£m £m
Finance costs
Bank loans L5} 28
Sanior benk joans 140.4) 11
Payment-in-kind loan {12.5 (130}
Paymai-in-kind 1oan cwad to paren underiaking 87 BN
Sharehclder lozn owed 10 parent undertaking 82.4) 54 2
Other loans awed 1o parent undertaking {19 {10
Other loans and charges {1.4) an
Arortisation of dabt issue cosis {5.4) {58}
Financs leases {19 n
Intarast on pension scheme latilties 27 {9 8)
Falr value losses Trom interes! rate caps with deferred pramiums (note 17 (b)) {3.5) {on
Total financs costs __J182 8) {137 8)
Finance Income
Irterest [ncoime on short temm deposits a5 01
Othar interest incoma 04 02
Foreign axchange gains on financing activitles 15 23
Expected retum on pension schems assels 82 1]
Total finance income 106 124
Flnance costs net {142 0} {125 5)
5 Income tax charge / {credit)
The taxation charga / (credi] is based on the loss for the ysar and comprises w2 201
Em £m
Current tax
Curmrent yesr group reliaf credit s {14 8}
Adjustments in respect of pravious years 143 -
Cverseas taxation 84 40
Daferred taxation
gl and ) of y dift sn {140y
to in respect of previous years (53) 10
npad of change in UK tax rate [c-3.1] 1)
ovarsess dafarrad taxation 04 45
Income tax charge / (credit) ed (26 4)
A reconciliation of the (eial tax charge / {credit) for the ysar compared (o the efective rate of corp tax is rised below
Em £m
Loss on ordindry activities bafore tax {123 3) (108 1)
Al 24 5% (2011 26 5%) {302) 2886)
Effacts of
Tax losses not grang rise to cument yoar retief 185 o4
Overseas tmartion - 14
Adjustmeanis to curreni taxation in respect of previous years 143
Adjustments to defemmed taxation in respect of previous years By 10
Re-measuremant of defemed Lax - changs in the UK tax rate s 5 1]
Financa costs on paymant-in-kind loans to parent undsrizkings 04 18
Finance costs on sharaholder lcan owsd to parent undertaking 14.2 -
Paymant-in-kind loan deemead taxable credi 161
Expenses not deductible for lax purposes and cther adjustments 98 47
Tax charge / [erudtt) 84 a4

The standand rate of corporation tax in the UK meduced from 26% to 24% with sffect from 1 Apdl 2012 and accordingty the company’s profits for the financial year were taxed at an sffective
rate of 24 5%

During ths ysar as s result of the change in the UK corparation tax rate [rom 24% 10 23% that was substantivaly snacted on 3 July 2012 #nd (3 effective from 1 April 2013 the retavant
deferred tax balances have been re-measured Deferred tax expecied (o reverse in the year to 31 December 2013 has bsen messuned using the sffective rale that wil apply In the UK for
the year (23 25%)

Further 13 10 the UK Jon tax rats ware announced in the December 2012 Autumn Statement and the March 20132 Budget. Further reductions to the main rate are proposed
te raduce the rate by a further 3% to 21% from 1 April 2014 and 1o 20% from 1 April 2015 These changss in the corporation tax rate trom 23% to 20% had not been substantvely enacted
atihe balance shest date and herefore are not gnisad In thess Inf
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5 thx ¢redit
Analysis of tix on items creditad to squity 2012 2011
£m £m
Defemed tax on 1 benefit oblig rial losses (see nole 20} 04 a7
Oversoas taxation on retirement benefit obligation aciuariai fo: - {03
04 44
Tax aftects of of other hansive incoma for the year
2012 2011
Befors tax Tax credit After tax Bafore Lax Tax eradit After tax
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Curmency trans/ation differences 02 - 02 {©3) 03
Cash flow hedges - - 01 o1
Actuarial jossss on defined benefit pension schema {4.5) 04 {41) {199) 44 {155)
{43) 04 {39) {201) 44 {157

§ Loss of the Parent Company tor the financial year

Tha Comp has taken od ge of Section 405 exemplion of the Companias Act 2006 and consequantly has nol pr d an incoma The Company's loss for the
financlal ysar amounted to £14 7m {2011 £1 Bm) The loss of E14 7m (2011 £1 Bm) was after net finance costs of £all (2011 £nlf) and a taxation chargs of £14 7m (2011 E1 Bm}

7 Goodwill
Group Em
Cost and nat book value
At 1 January 2012 8149
Exthangs adjustment 01}
At 31 Decamber 2011 314 8
Group £m
Cosl 2nd net book value
Al 1 January 2011 7889
Exthange sdjustmant ©1)
smpaiceent 102
Acquisition of subsidiaries 263
Al 31 Dscember 2011 8149
Tha g vill has baan ali to cash urita {CGLUS) and a summasy of the camying amounts of by { groups of cash generating units)
is as follows
Coumry
Broadline Cholce Total
£m £m £m
United Kingdom 8086 921 asa?
Continentat Europs 1161 1181
At 31 Decembaer 2012 7227 921 814.8
The B lve: b g P the core foodservice cash genersting unts In the UK #t comprises the Uading companies Brake Bros Limited Wikd Harvest Limded O'Kane
Food Sarvice Limtsd Freshiayre Limted Hrake Bros Foodservics Iretand Limtad and in Continental Europe nt principalty risas the trading Brake France Service SAS in
France and Menigo Foodservice AB In Sweden The Country Cholcs business tagment comprisas of the trading Brake Bros F Limted
Country
Broadline Choica Total
£m £m £m
Unitad Kingdom 80686 221 eg8 7
Continantal Eurcpe 182 1182
At 31 December 2011 7228 9_21 214 9
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7 Goodwlil {continued)

Inpairment reviews
An overview of impainment reviews pafformed by opersting sagment is set out below The recoverabls amount of a CGU is defermined on value-in-use caiulatons Thesa cakculations
uss pre-tax cash fiow projections based on intemal fi o bry v covering the next parod Subssguent tash fows bayond are extrapolated using the astrnated

growth nite stated batow

Broadiine and Country Cholca
The key assurnptions in the value in use calcylations were

- Revenue grawih  This was based on expected levels of activity under axisting major } g gether with growth hasad upon medium tern histodcal growih rates and
having regard for expected sconormiic and market condibons for other cusiomers

Operating cost growth  This assumption was bassd upon
in markst condilions

nant & exp Jon for sach sigs it product line having regard for contractual and exp hang

Discourt rates  The discount rates appiled to Lhe cash flow piofactions are based on &0 appeopiiate werghtod sverage cost of capiial for the group and reflact specific risks ralating to the
relevant operating segments

The forecasts are based on the approved managemaent pan covering the nexl financial year Subsequent cash fiows have been forecast to Increase by 3 25% (2011 3 25%} In lne with
the long term GDP growth rate and including inflation -] g p k based on growth The cash flows in the UK and Continental Eurcpe ware
discountad using pro-tax discount rates of @ B% {2011 10 1%) inthe UK 9 5% (2011 10 5%) In France and 7 8% (2011 10 5%) in Sweden

The results of the impal reviews und, i that the CGUs have recoverable amounts in excass of the camying valus of the goodwill For the impaiment reviews a
y y in crtics! ] and in note 110 the has been pertt anthe key P used In tha
recoverable amount of the CGUs  For By UK B Ine Conti Europe and Country Choice CGUS the results of the testing Indicate of recov in

excass of camylng values of 32% 222% and 66% respactively

3 Intangibla Assets

Customer
contracts and Computer
Brands  relstionships software Total

Group £m £m Em £m
Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2012 2135 BT T 582 8394
Exchange adjustment (0 4) G4
Additions 03 94 97
Disposals (48} {4 8)
At 31 Decamber 2012 2138 3812 672 6439
Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January 2012 B2 1383 424 2169
Exchenge adjustmert [(kH @3
CThange for ihe year 35 1 71 537
Disposais x (48) (48
At 31 December 2012 “uy 1718 492 2455
Nat book vaiue at 31 Decembar 2012 1630 1918 180 784

Gustomer
contricts gnd Computer
Brands  reletionships software Total

Groug £m Em £m £m
Cast or valuation

Al 1 January 2011 2104 B9 g 510 8304
Exchange adjustmen 0e {©8)
Acquisiion of subsidlanies a6 39 35 10
Addrticna 53 53
Oisposals 05 52 o B
Al 31 December 2011 2135 3|7 582 830 4
Accumulated amortiastion

Al 1 January 2011 a8 061 358 16885
Exchangs adjustment 04 {D 4)
Acquistion of subsidiaries Q2 08 21 2%
Charge for Lhe year a4 354 59 497
Impaiment 05 14 - 19
Disposats o5 5 1 8
At 31 Dacembar 2011 B2 1333 424 2189
Nel book value atl 31 December 2011 1773 2294 158 422 5

The Compary has no intangible assats
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9 Proparty plint and equipment

intormaton
Land and Motor Prant and echnology
buikdings | nt Total
Group £m im £m £m £m
Caost or valuation
Al 1 January 2012 1856 1148 1288 W03 4336
Exchangs adjustments (8 03 ©3) o1 an
Reclassificstion 14 01 [z30) o9 {0 6)
Addions 135 298 53 18 500
Disposal of subsidiary [(+F5) on 09
Disposals (16 0) (98) 52 03 311
At 31 December 2012 1829 1351 1249 324 4553
Accumulatsd depreciation
At 1 January 2012 705 643 810 233 2491
Exchange sdjustment on o1 02 (08
Reclassification [{IL)] 02 {12} o8 {06}
Chargs for the yaar 52 1688 T8 29 azs
Disposal of subsiciary 02 ©8) o8
Disposals {5 6) B4 {49) 0y (192
At 31_Decembaer 2012 690 128 "e 26T 802
Neat book vaiue at 31 Dy 2012 99 E25 330 5T 1931
Information
Land and Motor Plant and technology
q 7] Juip Total
Group £m £m £Em Em Em
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2011 158 2 1062 116 4 278 405 4
Exchange sdjustments 8 ©4) ©a ©1 @n
Raclagsification {35) ©1) @3 39
Acquisition of subsidiaries &0 104 85 17 276
Addiions 95 125 21 30 31
Disposzals {08) {127 (51) {16) {20 5}
At 31 December 2011 1858 1149 128 8 03 43596
Accumulated deprecistion
At 1 January 2011 B8 3 56 6 813 215 2288
Exchange adjustment {08 ©3) ©5 (@1 tn
Reclassification 8 [CR )] - {29)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 25 74 70 11 18¢
Charge for the yaar 41 24 :31] 28 27t
Disposals 08 (118 (48) (18 {190)
AL 31 December 2011 J05 643 810 po X 2491
Nat book value at 31 December 2011 85 1 508 378 70 190 §
Land and buildings comprise
2012 201
£Em Em
Cost or valuation
Freehold 124 8 140 8
Long lsasehold 94 108
Shaot [eazehold 287 142
1629 1858
Accumulated depreciation
Freahold S48 502
Long leasehold 38 44
Shon lsasahold s 18
890 70 &
Assets held under finance leases hava Lhe following net book smount
M2 2011
£m Em
Cost e 555
Accumutated dapreciation [32.3) (30 8)
Net boak ameunt 4523 248
Land end buiksings 78 B2
Mator vehicles E1ad 158
Plant and equipmant 01 08
Nat book amount 453 246

The Company has no propetty plant and equipment
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10 (a] Investmants in subaldiaries

Investrments in subsidlary undariakings (squity) al cost and net book vakie

2012 2011
Company £m £m
At 1 January and 31 December 207 207
The Company's Y 9 I3 Cucine Acquistion (UK) Limited a non-trading holding comp Al of the Company's are in the y shane capdal of each
pany The that the value of the 218 SUPP by thewr undedying assets
The Ictiary at 31 O 2012 and 31 Decomber 2011 unless clharwise stated ase listed &3 follows
Country of Pa
Nama of Company Incorporation interest held __ Oparsting in
Tho principal trading subsidiary undenakings are alt involved in the supply of frazen chilled and amtrent foods as well a3 catering supplies 2nd equipment to the catering industry and arn
as follows.
Brake Bros Limited England and Wales 100 00%. United Kingdom
Brake Bros Foodservice Lumuted England and Wales 100 00% United Kingdom
MLJ Saafood Limited England and Wales 100 00% United Kingdom
Wild Harvest Limrsd Engtand and Wales 100 DO% United Kingdom
Frashfayra Limted England and Wales 100 00% United Kingdom
Brake Bros Receivables Limited England and Wales 100 00% United Kingdom
O'Kane Food Sarvice Limited Novthemn Irefand B8 00% United Kingdom
Brake Bros Foodservice (reland Lim:tad Republic of Ireland 80 00% Republic of Irefand
Braks France Service SAS France 100 00% Continental Eurcpe
Menigo Foodservice AB Sweden B8 &7% Continental Europe
Country of Percentage
Nama of Company incarporstion Intérest hald  Immedixte parent uncertaking
Non-trading holding companies are as follows
Cucina Acquisibon (UK) Limted England and Walss 100 00% Cuclna Finance (UK) Limnad
Brake Bros Helding | Limitad England and Walss 104 00% Cucina Acquisition {Li) Limited
Braks Bros Helding il Limsted Engiand and Wales 100 00% Brake Bros Holding | Limited
Brake Bros Hotding Ill Limited England and Wales 100 00% Cucing Acquisdion (UK) Lirsted/Braks Bros Hokaing 1 Limitsa
Braks Bros Financa Limded England and Walas 100 00% Brake Bros Holding Il Limited
Brake Bros Acquisdion Limited Engiand and Walas 100 00% Brake Bros Finance Limitad
Brake France SAS France 100 00% Braks Bros Limded
Cidron Food Holding S Arl Luxembourng 66 67% Brake Bros Limsted
Cidron Food Servicas Sarl Luxembourg 68 67% Cidven Food Hotding Sari
Country of Parcentzge
Nama of Company Incorporation Intarest held
Othar subsidlary undertakings are as follows
Trading cormpanies
Servicestyckama | Johanneshoy AB Sweden 66 B7%
Isakssons Fruld & Grdnt AB Sweden 68 687%
Fruktsarice i Helsingborg AB Swadon 68 87%
Restaurangakademion AB Swedeon 33 M%
Brake Franca Développement France 100 0O%
Dormant and other non-trading companiss
Erakes Limited England and Walas 100 O0%
Campbell & Nsill Limited England and Wales 100 00%
Ceams & Brown {Southemn) Limted England and Wales 100 00%
John Maris Leasing Limited England and Walea 100 00%
Stockflag Limited England and Wales 100 00%
Tasta of the Wild Limited England and Wales 100 00%
W Pauley & Co Limned England and Wales 50 00%
Watson & Phillp Cearns & Brown {South East) Lir England and Wales 100 00%
‘Woodward Foodservice Limied Engtand and Walas 100 00%
Scotia Campbe!l Marine Limited Scotland 100 00%
Menige Foodservice Norge AS Sweden BEE™™
Frukiserice | Matmd AR Sweden B8 87%
Fastigl get Gi fLund AB Swedsn 85 87%
Menigo Invest 1 AB Sweden BEE7%
Meanigo invest 2 AB Sweden 86 87%
Carigel SA France 100 00%
SC! Bianchi Montegut France 100 00%
SCI Le Dauphin France 100 00%
Soctété Bretonne Alimentaire France 10G 00%
Financiére Du Rohein France 100 0O%
SCI Do Boisaau France 100 00%
BC D Garcolles Francs 100 00%
Group Rauft France 100 O0%
SCI JD Lanjousn France 100 00%
Rautt Lambatle France 100 00%
Rautt Sud France 100 00%
Rault Vendome France 100 00%.
Rault Nartes France 100 0O%
Rautlt Casn France 100 0C%

The subsidiary undenizking Browns Focdservice Limited was disposed of during the yesr
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40 {b). Investments In askotintes

012 2011
Group Em £m
At 1 January 137
Disposal of associate - (14 8)
Sham of profm - 09
At 31 Decembar . -
11 Inventories
Group
2012 2011
£m £m
Raw materials and consumabies 15 23
Finished goods and goods for ressle 1098 994
1121 1M 7
The Company has no inventory
12 Trade and other necelvables
Group Company
012 2011 2012 2m
£m £m £m £m
Trade recervablas 1108 788
Trade receivables - factored 1540 1628
Lass provision for impatrmem of receivabies #1713 By
Trade receivables net 2557 2341
Amounis owad by panent undertakings 38 54 4
Armounts owed by group undarakings 241 214
Loans owed by parent undartakings 3 -1}
Loans owed by group underakings I G604 9
Cther recoivables a0 59
Prepayments 133 148 -
3201 78 a1 4 7183
Lass non-current portien {451 1) 4219)
3201 376 340 3 204 4

During the ysar cartain subsidiary companies of the Group sofd lndo réceivables to Brake Bros Receivables Limded Brake Bros Receivables Limied hes entéred into & recounss
factoring agresment with & bank and thess lvabias are top Int the rote above The transaction has bsen accounted for as a collatarallsed bomowing (ses ncte 16} In
cayo Brake Bros Receivaties Limned defaults under the oan aqnomcm the iendar has ne fig 1o recerve the cash Nows Trem \he recefvabies transtemed  ‘Without detaunt Brake Broy
Raceivables Limted wiil collect! the recetvables and allocate new recefvables as collaterai  The total ameunt pledged as collateral for borrowings [s £154 Om (2011 £162 8m)

The book value of rade and other racelvables with a maturity of less than ocia year are assumed to approximats to fair value
The effeciiva interesl rate on loans owed by parent 2nd group undiartakings is 5 6% (2011 52%) and 11 B% (2011 11 3%) respectively

As 6l 3t Dscember 2012 group lrads recaivablas of £210 Im (2011 £156 2m) wara fully p g and as of 31 D 2012 pany receivables from amourts owed by group and
parant undertakings of £24 1M (2011 £21 4m) end loans owed by group undertakings of £777 3m (2041 £594 ) wers fidly parforming

As of 31 December 2012 group trade receivables of £45 1m (2011 £37 5m) wers past due but not impaired  These relate to & number of customers Tor whom thend is no recent history of
dafault The ageing analysls of thass trads raceivables is 81 follows

Group

2012 2014

£m Em

Up 1o 3 months LoX) E1)
3 to 8 months [ 15
451 s

As of 31 Dx 2012 tade h of E9 4m (2011 E£8 7m) were Impaired and provided for Thnnmumoflheprwlllonw:tﬂ1masuf31 December 2012 (2011 £8 3m} The
Individually (mpaired recelvables mainly relzte lo which are In L difficutt } It was that & porlon of the receivables s expected to be

recovared The ageing analysls of these irade receivables is a3 follows
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12 Trade and othar recalvables (continued)

Group
2012 201
Em £m
Up te 3 months 23 23
310 8 months 3 22
Over 6 monihs 35 42
LX) 87
The carywig amounts of the irade srxd other fvables are d I inthe Q
Group Compeny
2012 20m 2012 2011
£m £m £m Em
Pounds 2158 2241 7853 mz2
Euras 537 439 - -
Swadizh Krond so3 438 161 151
3264 3178 301 4 716 3
M onthe p for imp of trade are as follows
Group
012 20
Em £m
At 1 Jantuary LF} an
Exchange adjustment o1) ©n
Acquiztion of subsdiaries . 15
Provision for recelvables impairmenm 48 42
Receivables writtsn off during the ysar as uncollectble an 1)
At 31 Decambar a1 821
Concentrations of credit risk with respact to trade receivables are limited dua to the Group s customer bags being large and . Dua la this balieve there Is no further
credit risk provislon required in excass of a normal pravislon for impai Tl 1he maxdmum exposurs to credit sk at the seporting data is the far value of each class
af receivable The Group and Company do net hold any collateral as secunty
The cther classes within irads and other rscelvables do not contain Impaired assets
13 Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
Em £m £m £m
Cash ai bank and in hand 859 881 -
Short term bank deposits 28 781 .
169 4 1452 .

The effactive intarast rats on group ¢ash at bank and In hand was 0% (2071 09%) and an group short term deposits was 0 25% (2011 0 25%]) ihese deposits have an aversgs maturty of
1day (2011 1day) The effective Intenesl raie on cornpacy cash at bank and in hand was 0% (2011 0%)

14 Trade and other payablas

Group Company
2012 20 oz 201
£m Em £m £m
Trade payabiss 3599 Az -
Amounts owed (o parent undertakings 250 27 256 208
Amounts owed lo group undertakings - 192 58
Other laxes and social security s 02 -
Qther payablas 165 180 -
Accruzls 503 Mo - oe
474.3 4151 48 272
nof-currart {211) (120 {21 1) (199)
4533 2 358 1 237 B2

Far the Group and Company the non-Cutrent portion cOMprisas amMounts owed (o parent undertakings of £21 1M (2011 £18 4m) and accruats of £nl (2011 £0 6m)

Amounts owed to group and parem undertakinga are unsecured and bear no Interast
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13 Gurrent tax liabllities

Group
Fiar) 201
Em £m
COrperation Lax - oversans 02 02
02 02
The Company has ne corporation tax Mabxity st erther date of the siatemani of financlal position
16 F K - bor
Group Company
202 20m 2012 2011
Current £m £m Em £m
Loan notes o4 04
Bank loans o4 Ao
Senior bank loans 334 a0 -
Other logns owed t& parent undertaking 38 38 R ] kY.
Financa laasa obilgationa 128 t2
508 234 18 38
Group Company
2012 2011 nz M1
Non-current £m £m £m £m
Loan notes or 11 -
Bank loans 1548 1615 -
Senlor bank loans 207 8227 -
Payment-in-kind |cen ira2 1855 Tr2 165 %
Payment-in-kind Ican owed 1o parent underaking 2239 1159 259 1159
Shergholdar loan owed o parent undertaking 4832 4035 4832 4035
Other [oans Swed ¢ parent undertaking 108 100 108 100
Debt Issus costs s 4 [:1v] -
Finance feass obligations 40 192 - -
18777 1763 4 T 694 9
Lesa amounts falling dus within one year {som) 23 4) {38) £28)
18259 17700 7133 691 1
Certain bank loans are sscured by way of a fixad and foating charge over the assets of the Group and other bank lcans have been oblained p to aded ] g
{nota 12)
Tha carrying amounts of the Group and Company’s gs ans inthe ving
Group Comparny
2012 201 12 201
Em £m £m £m
Pounds 18770 1586 0 8240 537 3
Euros 1889 1470 1292 143 8
Swedlish Krona 48 504 1289 138
1,877 7 17934 [£a] 694 8

Maturity of financial llabltities

The tablas below analysas the Group and Company's financial llatildies and nai settied derivitive financlal instrumants into relevant maturity groupings bassd on Ihe remaining panod st

ihe date of ihe statement of financial postion 1o ihe contract maturity date  The amounts ¢iscicsed in the table for berrowangs and tracie payables are the aal und; d cash
flows and for derivative financial instruments 4 |a the fair value Balances due within 12 months equal iheir carying batances as the impac of discounting is not signricent
Lessthan Betwsenone Eatween two Ovar five
One year 4nd two years and five years yairs Total
Group Em Em £m £m £m
Borrowings 508 569 17881 19 18777
D - 2.2 - - 22
Trade and other payables excluding statutory liabiities 4308 211 - 517
At 31 December 2012 4814 581 1,789 2 19 23318
Lessihan Betweenone  Betwesn two Over five
ons year and two years  and five yoars yours Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Bomowings Tia 843 5408 8335 15120
Derivative financlal instruments 18 - 18
Tracde and other payables #xcluding )i 59 - 190 334 9
At 31 December 2011 4011 843 540 8 025 19087
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18 Financial llabilities - borrowings (continued)

Lessthan  Getwesn one  Batween two Trret Tive

one year and two years and fve years years Total
Company £m Em £m £m £€m
Bormowings 38 4702 3031 w1
Dertvative financisl instruments - - - - -
Trade and other payables 237 291 448
At 31 Decembar 2012 215 470 2 324.2 - 3119

Lessthan  Setweenone  Betweentwo Over five

one year and two years  and five ysars yoRrs Tots!
Compary £m £m £m £m £m
Bommowings 38 587 5310 7212 13227
Dertvative finkncial instrurments - 18 18
Trade and other pay a2 - 190 272
At 31 Docamber 2011 120 505 5330 7482 13517

The tables below analyses the Groups financial instruments which will be settied on & gross basis into rélevant maturty groupings based on the remalning perod at the date of the
statement of financial position to the contract maturily date  The amcunts disclosad in ths tabie are the contractual undiscounted cash flows The fair velues of the Group 3 dervative
fi iat instrument kabities =fter di g arnourt to £2 2m (2011 £1 8m) Balances due within 12 months equal ther camying balances as the impact of discounting 18 not significant

Lestthan  Between one

At 31 December 2012 one YORT And tWo years Total
Group £m Em £m

Deferred premiums

LIBOR outflow - (19) {19)
EURIBOR _outfiow - {03) 93]
Net sutflow - {2 2) 122)

Less than Botween ono

At 31 December 2011 one year  and two years Total
Group and sompany £m £m £m
Deterred premiums
LIBOR outflow (15 - (15
EURIBOR outflow {23) - 03)
Net outflow (18 - (18)
Barmowing facilities
The Group has the g undrarwn g a3 D b
Group
Floating Floating
rate rate
2012 2011
Em £m
Expiring beyond one year s 874

Of thesa facities £50 Om (2011 £75 Om} of senlor facilties 2re avallabie until 2014 end £25 Om (2011 Enil} of senior facildies sro available untl 2018 and £12 5m (2011 £12 4m) of othar
bank foan facilities are avaiable untl 2015

The Group has minimum laase payments under flnance (eases al 31 Dacamber falling dus a3 follows

Group

2012 201

Em £m
Not latsr than ona ysar 150 20
Later than one yedr but not more than five 295 130
Mors than five yesrs 21 oS
468 25

Future finance charges on financa [aases ise) 33
Prasent valus of Mioancs lsasa labillties 410 192

e

The Company has né finance leases
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18 Financlal [fabilities borrowings [continued)

Tha axposure of Lha Group 1o iremsst rate changes st 31 December Is a3 follows

Group Company
2012 201 012 2011
€m £m £m £Em
Borrowings al floating interest rates 13411 13341 3031 281 4
Fixad t2te bomowings maturing
within one ysar 158 107 3 s
- ons o five years 5189 383 a2
- ovar five ysars 19 4103 3 4097
18777 1703 4 7771 894 9

Of the bormawings at floating interest rates the Group have antarsd into interest rate caps which have the economic effect of placing 4 limi on the maximum inerest rate increase applled
&t cortain future dates The notonal principal amoums of the interest rate caps gt 31 Decamber 2012 wers £680 2m for LIBOR borowings and £116 4m for EURIBOR bormowings (for
further details see note 17(d) @)

The effective interast rates at the date of the statement of financial position were &3 follows

Group

2012 2011
Bank loans I1% 34%
Sanioer bank loans 4.T% 44%
Payment-in-ind losn T1% Td%
Paymant-in-kind losn owed to parent underiakings 7T1% T4%
Sharsholder loan owed Lo parent undertaking 14.9% 148%
Other loans owed to parent undertakings 148% 14 8%
Finance lsasa obligations B50% 67%

17 Financilal Instruments
17 (a) Financial instruments - disclosures

Disclosures In respect of the Group s financial risks are sat out below  Additional disciosuras are sol oul in the Accounting Policies {on pages 12 to 17} and numerical disclosures in
rospact of francial Instrumenta are set out in nota 17(b) 17¢c) and 17{d)

Financial sk managememt

Financial risk factors

The Group has operations in e UK the Republic of frefand France and Swaden and has dabl financing which expases  to a varisty of financlsl risks thai includs the effects of changas
in debt market pricas forelgn cumency exchange raies cradil risks liquidity and interest rates The Group has in place a risk management programme that sasks to limr the adverse
affects on the financial parformance of the Group by using forslgn cumency dabl to hedge in Idiaries and interast hodging egreements to imit the impact from
potentizl futura interest rate Incraases

The Group s board of directors have the responsibility for sefting the risk management policies applisd by the Group  The policies ara implemented by the central treasury department that
receivas regular reports from the opersting companies fo snable prompt identfication of financial risks so that the approprists sctions may be taken The Group has a policy and

procedures manual thal sets out specilic guidalines to ge foreign e risk interest raie nsk credit risk, liquldity risk and the use of fnanclal instruments to manage

(i) Foresgn exchange risk

The Group has operations in the UK the Republiic of Ireland France and Swacan The Group is expased to foreign exchange risks primarily with respect (o the Euro and Swedish Krona
Exposune to the Swedish Krona is not considered matsrial The Group has certain invastments in Torelgn operations whose nel assets are exposed (o foreign Y lation risk
Currsncy exposure ariging from the net assets of the Group s foreign op isr god primaily through gs denominated in the Euro

If the UK pound had weakenad /strengthened by 10% againsi ths Euro with all other variables held constant 1he loss before tax in the i income is asti at

£5 5m (2011 £8 6m) higher/ £4 6m (2011 £5 Ym) lower as a resu't of foregn exchange gaing / josses on transiation of the Euro denominsted bomowings

(H) tnterest rate risk
The Group has both interest beasing assets and interest bearing llabildies

Tha Oroup ¢ interast rate rak prmarily arisss from floating intarest rate long-tarm bomowings  Borrowings (asued &t varabile rates expose the Group to cash flow infarest rate rsk  During
2012 the Group 3 berrowings &l variable rate wers danominated in the UK pound Euro and Swedish Krona  The Group manages s cash flow interest rate risk by using interest rate caps
Such interss rite caps have the economic effect of placng a limi on the maximum interest rale increass appiied ol certain future dates Under the interast rate caps the Group agrees
with other parties that for specifiad future quarterty dates if the market interest rate axceeds the interest rate cap strike rate the differerice will ba paid to the Group calculated by reference
o the agreed notional amounts

Based on lhis management of the interest rate risk the Group caicuiates the impaci on the loss after taxation in the consolidsted income statsment of & del‘inad intarast rata shift on
finance ¢osts and finance incoma  Basad on the aumulatons performed the impact on (he 1038 after taxation of & 10% shift in inerest rates would be a or & of
£5 0m (2011 £4 2m)
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17 Financial Instr {continued)

1T (a) F - diselosuras {continued)

(Tif) Credit risk

The Group has no zignificant concoentrations of cradd risk  Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalenis as well as credil axp to & ¢ outstanding bl
and 18 For banks indsp ly rited parties within the band A rating are used for the main Group banking requi and for y day
to day operating For rigk control the credd qualty of the customer taking into accourt s financial position past experience and other factors

Indnsidual risk limits. are sel based on Infemel or extemal ratings The Group has implemanted podicies that require appropriate credil checks on polential customers befors saies
commence

The table below shows the credit rating and balance of the major bank counterparties at the date of the statement of financial position A full analysis of cash at bank and shor tem
deposits is includsd in note 17(d) to the financial statements

2012 2011

Balance Balance
Courterparty Rating Em Rating £m
Bank A A+ 1258 A+ 973
Bank B A 25 At LR
Bank C At 1721 AA- 103
Bank D A a4 A+ 131
Bank E A o4 A 28
Bank F BB+ 54 BB+ LX)
Bank G A+ 128 A+ 54
Bank H A- o8 A 04
Eank | A - Ad 03
Bank J AA o4 AA- o8
Bank K Ar o1
Bank L AA 01

160 4 145 1

Management doas not expect any lossas from non-p by thasa
(i) Uquichty risk

The Group actively maintaina s mixture of iong-tem and short-larm facilities that are designed to ensure the Group has sufficlent Habla funds for and p

Management monrors rafiing foracasts of the Group $ Iiquldty resarve (comprisas undrawn bomowing facilty {note 18} and cash and cash aquivatents (nota 13} on the basis ol' .xpecied
cash flow The Group mantains liquidity through available cash reserves and bomowing primarily through s Sentor Facliiies Agreements The
sanior banks montor the Group s perfomancs through quartsrty covenant tests with the Group reporting headroom on all covenant testing during the year ended 31 December 2012

Capltal risk managemant
The Group s cbjsttives when managing capral are to safaguard the Group s ability [0 continue as i going concem in order to provide retums for shareholders and to maintain an opumal
caprtal structurs 10 reducs the cost of capial  These objectives are managed at the utimats UK Group level Cucina Lux nvastments Limited rather than st individual unit lsvel

The everall debt and equity structurs of the Company is under the cortrol of the uitimata persnt company Cucina (BC) Luxco S ar)  There are no external captal reguiremenis on the
Company Furiher datails of he share capial of the Company can ba found In nate 21 of the financlal statements

Set out below are numerical disclosures in respect of the Group and Company's financial instruments

17 (b} Fl |al Instr Aumerical

Falr value estimation
The tatis below analyses financial instruments caried ot fair valua by valustion method The diffsrant levels have been defined as follows

Quoted prices (unadjusied) in aciive markets for identical assets or kabities (lavel 1)
Inputs other than quatad pricas included within lavel 1 that are observable for tho asset or fiabrity sither directty (the is as prices) or Indireclly (that Is derived from prces) (level 2
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not basad on cbaervable market data {that is unobservable inputs) (level 3)

Tha following table prasents the Group & assets ang liabilities that are meazursd at far value at 31 Dy ber 2012 The Compeny did nat have any asssts or liabilities measured at fair
valua ai 31 December 2012

Level 1 iavel 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m Em
Assats
tnterest rate caps - 98 - o8
Lavat1 Lavel 2 Lavel 3 Total
&m £m £m £m
Liabilittes
Interest rate caps with defermd pramiums - 212 - 22
The Labio px the Group s that ars at tnir value at 31 D 2011 The Comparry did not have any liabddies that are measured at fair value at 31
Decembar 2011
Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Leveld Total
£m £m £m £m
Liabiiitias
Interest rate caps with deferrad premiums - 18 18
The Groyp and Company does not have any financial instruments that are traded in active manets
For all ather finenclal Instruments fair value is by using technl ! 1 tach Includs nai present vllu‘ techniques the uluoumea cash fiow mathod
comparison to simiar instruments for which market cbsarvable prices exist &nd valuation models The Group uses widel models for g the fair value of

common and mors simple financlal tnstruments Uke interest rte swaps and irterest rate caps with detemed premiums  For lhele financlal instrurnerts inputs Into models are market
observable These valustion techniques maxlmlu the use of observable market data whars it |3 availabie and rely a3 littls as possible on antdy specific estimates 17 atl sigruficant [nputs.
required to fair value an 1 are ob the i is in lovel 2 I one or mone of the sigruficant inputs is not based on observabie market data the instrument is
Inchudad In level 3
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17 Financlai Instruments {continued)

17 (b). Financhal | i &)

Carrying valves of

Assuts Uabilitles Assats Llatiities
2012 2012 2011 201

Group Em £m £m £m
Intarast rate caps with defemed premiums - 22) [1R:]
Imerest rata caps o8 - -
Total (-1 ] {22) 08
Los$ non-cument portion
interust rate c&ps with defamed premiums - {22) -
Irterest rate ceps [ X . -
Total non-current portion ') {22)
Current portion - - 08
Tha {air valua of the interaxt tate caps with dafermd premiums and interast rate ceps have been oy to prces fror tha markets on whnch the instruments
Invoived ane traded

The Ineffectiva portion recognised in Tinance costs in the consolidated income siatement artsing from nel investment in foceign entity hedges amounted io # gain of £1 8m (2011 £2 1m)

(1) Interast rate caps with deferred premiums

The interest s cap cortracts with defermed premiums wene srtsmd into on 13 Aprl 2012 with & forward stan dats of 30 Apnl 2012 and mature on 31 December 2014 they have (he
efToct of capping Noating rate LIBOR #nd EURIBOR g3 The principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate cap contracta ai 31 December 2012 weore £630 2m for the
LIBOR borrowings and £116 4m fof the EURIBOR bomowings The cappad Interast ratas are 1 1% for LIBOR and EVRIBOR borrowings The notional drmourts of the defered premiums
payable an 17 Apeil 2013 and 17 April 2014 ars £1 Om and £0 8m respectively Tor 1he LIBOR bormowings and £0 2m and £3 1m respactively and for the EURIBOR bormowings

In the prior year the interost mte cap contracts with deferrad pramlums were antered into an 24 August 2007 with a forward start date of 20 September 2011 and matured on 20 September
2012 The nctional of the g interest rate cap comtracts st 31 December 2011 ware £418 Om for the LUBOR bomowings and £76 8m for the EURIBOR
gs The of the premiums paid a1 the end of the corract on 20 Sapternber 2012 wera £1 5m for the LIBOR bormowings and £0 3m for the EURIBOR

{ii) interast rate caps

imerest rate cap contracts wers enisred into on 26 March and 21 May 2010 with forwaird start dates of 20 December 2011 and 20 December 2012 respectively and mature on 20
Decamber 2013 2nd will have the sffect of capping Nosting rate LIBOR borowings  The notional princip of ihe ¢ interes! rata cap contracts at 31 December 2012
wara £183 O (2011 £163 Om) and £179 O (2011 £179 Om) respectively The capped intorest retes are § 0%

(i) Hedge of net investment! in foreign entify

The Group has Euro denominated senior bank loan bomowings of which it has designated as a hedge of the net investmeant In its subsidiaces in Continental Ewope  The vatue of these
Eurc bomowings at 31 December 2012 were £133 2m (2011 £143 Bm) A foreign exchange galn of £2 1m (2011 E1 5m) on translation of the borrowings into steriing has bean ofTsat
against an exchange loas of £2 1m {2011 £1 5m} on translation of the net investmam in subsidiaries

Fair valuas of non-derivative financial assets and llabilities

Whare markel valuas are not available fair values of financial assets and financial liabilties have been calculated by discounting axpacted future cash flows at pravaliing interest rates
and by applying year and exchange rates The book valug of short term bomowings is approximate to fair value as the impact of discounting Is not significant

Page 32




Cucina Finance (UK) Limited
Annual report and financial statements
Faor the ysar ended 31 December 2012

Notes to the financial statements

AT F b Ieont; )

17 {b) Financial Instruments - numaerical disctosures {continued)

Fair value of primary financial instruments held or Issusd to finance cperations

Group

At 31 December 2012

Al 31 Decamber 2011

Book value Fair value Bock value Fair valus
£m £m Em £m
Primary financial instrumeris held or issued fo finznca the Group s oparstions
Short term financial iabilitias &nd turrent portion of long lerm borrowings (50 8) 50 8) {23 4) 23 4)
Other long term borowings 8433 (L7387} {1 776 0} (1 666 5)
Trade and cther payablas {474 %) 474.3) (415 1} 415 1)
Trade and other receivables ELoR ] 3048 3030 3030
Cash and cash equivalents 183.4 163 4 1452 1452
Retirement benafit obligations {83.9) 53 %) [EOEN) &0 1)
Provisions for other labliies nd charges Hz7 1z2n n21) (121
Interest rate caps with defared premiums 1221 22 {18 1)
o8 [} .

interest rate caps

The book values of short tamm bank deposits loans and other borrowing$ with & maturtty of less than one year ars assumed 1o epproxim
d by

and pthar borowings due in mors than one year the falr value of

astimated markat inferest rate available to the Group for similar financial Instuments

Othar far values shown above have besn calculated by discounting cash flows at pravailing Intersst rates

purposes is

At 31 Decombaer 2012

ain to ther Tair vatues In Lthe case of bank loans
q the future contractyal cash flows ail the cument

At 31 Decamber 2011

Book value Fair valua Book value Fair valus
Company £m Em £m £m
Primary financlal instrumants held or issued to finance tha Comparny's opesations
Short term financial lisbltes and cument portion of long term bomowings {3g) 8 (3 8} [£F.}]
Other long tam bormowings {73y (788 9} s91 1} {854 1)
Trads and other payables {44 8) (44 B8y 272 272)
Other recsivables amounts owed by group and perent undertakings 8014 5014 7i8 3 71623
17 {c) Financial instruments by category
The accounting pcticias for financlal instiryments have been applied to the ine tems balow
Asgats
at fair value
through the Loans and
profit and loss receivables Total
Group Em £€m £m
At 31 Dacembar 2012
Assets as por statement of financial postion
Trade &nd othar receivablos 3040 304 8
Cash and cash equivatents 1634 160 4
Derivative financial instruments -1 ] - -] ]
(1] 4732 4738
Assets
al far valua
through the Loans and
profit and icss recelvables Tedal
Group £m £m £m
A131 December 2011
Assats a3 per statement of inansial postion
Traca and other recsivables - 3030 3030
Cash and cash equivalents 1452 1452
- 4482 448 2
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17 Financial instruments [continued)

17 {c). Financiat Instruments - by category [continued)

Liabilities Financial
at falr value llabilities
throughthe  at amartised
profit and loss cost Total
Group £Em £m Em
At 31 December 2012
L ins &g por of fi lal postion
Bormowings - 18777 10777
Derivative fnenclal instrumenis 22 - 22
Trade and other payables exciuding statutory ilabiiites - 4511 47
22 2,329 4 2,331 6
Liabilties Flnancial
&t fair value lisbilities
throughthe  at amortised
profit and loss costl Total
Group £m £m im
At 31 December 2011
L ag per of postion
Bomowings 17934 17834
Dernvaiive financizl instruments 18 18
Trade and other payables sxchyding statutory labilties 394 6 3840
18 21883 2,190 1
Loans and
receivables
Company £m
At 31 Decembaer 2012
Assets as per statement of financial pasition
Trade and cther recaivablas 801 4
Loans and
receivables
Compary Em
At 31 December 2011
Assets as par statemant of financial position
Trade and other receivables 7163
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1T Fi ar 0 )
17 (e] FI 1 -by gory o)
Financis)
llabitites
atamortived
cost
Company £m
At 31 December 2092
L a8 per nof pasition
Borrowings i
Trade and cther payables exchuding statutory Fabilties d48
8219
Fingncial
{imbilties
at amortised
cnst
Company £m
At 31 Decamber 2011
Lisbiities as per statament of financial postion
2 8049
Trade #nd cther payables excluding statutory flablities 2132
722 1
17 {d) Cracht guality of financial assets
Tha eredt quality of financial assots that ame nethar past dud nos imp can be d by rof to our Group risk profile indication based upan information provided by our
extarnal cradit agancles
Group
2012 2om
€m £m
At 3 December
Trade receivables
Low rizk 1503 127 4
Madium nzk 453 547
High sk 132 141
2403 108 2
Thesa categories of nak raflact the relative credn risk atiributable to cur trade receivables
Group
2012 201
£m £m
At 31 Dacamber
Cash at bank snd shart term degosita
AA 05 14
A+ 1508 1219
A 111 32
A os -
Ba + 54 46
188 4 145 1
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18 Ratl % Baneflt obligath

Following the scqulaition of Brake Bros Holding | Limited in 2007 the Group operstes a number of psnsion schemes for its LK employees the assets of all sch baing held in
trusies administered funds These pension schemes ara operated by Brake Bros Limdad a subsidiary of Braks Bros Holaing | Lumdes

Tha Brake Bros plc Pension Schame was closed to naw entrants in Juna 2001 and was closed 1o existing employeas at 21 Dacember 2003 No further banefits sre accruing to membars
subsoquent to this date  The scheme Is a contracted out defined benafit scheme providing final salary related benefits accru:ng 1/80th for each year of sarvice and a fump sum in the
everi of denth in service

Tha Brakes Money Purchase Pansion Ptan is contracted into the Siate pension scheme end minimumn contribution rates are 3% of salary for and 4% for employ
with higher employ for - Funds are d with Legal & General Invesiment Management

In agdition In Continertal Eurape the Group Is liabie for certain post empicymant banefits which mest the critena of a defined benefid plan Thase obligaiions are of an ynfunded nature

Defined contribution schemes
Penalon casts for defined cantnbution schamas are s follows

%12 2011

Em im

Defined contribution schemes (1] 54

Defined benefit plans
Continental Continental

UK Europe Group UK Europe Group

2012 032 2012 20n 2011 o

Retiramant benefit obllgations &m £m Em £m £m £m
At 1 January k.1 ] 238 801 209 ar 246

Exchange adjustmen - a1 o1 - @n on
On acquisition of subsidiary underiaking - - - - 130 180
Interest on obligation a8 (1] 97 94 04 88

retum on scheme assats 22) - an [:0.) {98)
Obligations steruad in the year 11 11 - 2] 08

Contributions paid In ihe year 32) (06} ag 20 @2 22
Actuarial igsaes / {gains) recognised in equity 47 {0 2} 45 181 18 188
At 31 December 3a7 242 LMK 386 235 601

Brake Bros pic Pension Sch rati banafit up to & maximum amount of £20 Om (2011 £20 Om) are sécured By way of a charge over cartain property plant and

equipment of the group

The mosl recent actuarial valuation of The Brake Bros pic Pension Scheme was carmied out 81 5 April 2011 The principal assumptions made by the actuaries for the perods snded 21
Dacamber wers

2012 2011
* %
UK sssumptions.
Rate of incroase in pensions In payment and defemed pansions 29 30
Discount rate 47 49
Inflation assumption RPI 295 31
Inflation assumption CP1 28 22
Expected retum on plan assats -3 57
France assumptions
Discount rate 325 43
Sweden assumiphons.
Discourtt rste 16 g
Salary increass 30 30
Inftation 20 20
Mortality rafe UK assumptions
g future y experienca ara s6t based on advice and pubdish The ge lifa axp inysarsof a p retiring 2t age 85 on the date of
tha :mamam o! rinanclnl posiiion is u follows
2012 2011
Malo 218 F3E-]
Fermnale 23 229
The ge life axp y in years of & pensk retiving al age 65 20 years afisr the data of he siatement of Enancial postion is as follows
2012 2011
Male 228 22
Female 256 255
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18 banefit obligati {
P and other post:
The amounts ised 1n the 1 of i ial position #t 31 December are determined as follows.
Group Group Group Group Group
012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Presant value of funded cbligations 1936 1829 1578 164 7 1321
Prazent value of unfunded obligations ua 235 ar 33 i
Fair value of pan assets {154 9] {148 3) {148 9} (134 3) {1192y
Nngnmniuwwnmmmemmmmmlm 6335 501 248 37 16 0
Experience gaina  (I035as) ofl plan assets for the year 32 gy 75 86 {26 9)
Exparience (osses) / gaing on scheme labilties for the year a7 (12 8) (93) (28 7) 195
Analysis of movement in present value of retirement banefil obigations
Continental Continental
UK Europa Group UK Europs Group
2m2 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
£m Em £m Em £m £m
Al 1 January 1829 215 2084 1878 a7 175
Exchange adjustmen - 01 a1 on on
On acquisttion of subsidiary undertaking - - - 180 1860
Interast cost 33 09 a7 g4 04 98
Actuarial losses / (gains) 79 02 77 108 18 128
Contributions pald by employer - {o8) {0 &} . 02) 02
Qbligations accrued in the year - 11 11 - 05 05
Benafits paid 60 - (80} [CA)) [LRH
A 31 Decoinbes 193 6 248 218 4 1529 235 206 4
Represented by
Continental Conlinental
UK Eurupe Group UK Europe Group
2012 2012 2012 2011 201 2011
£m Em Em £m £m £m
Funded obligations 1938 1038 1829 1829
Unfunded obligations - 48 243 235 235
1938 24 8 2134 1829 235 208 4
Analysis of movament in far value of scheme asysats
Continental Contnental
UK Eurppe Group UK Europa Group
2012 2012 2012 2011 201 2011
£m £m Em £m £m Em
At 1 January 1483 - 146 3 14569 - 146 9
Expected return on plan asssts a2 - 32 L] - 92
Actuarial gains / (losses) 32 - 32 73 . on
Contributions paid by smploysr a2 . 32 20 . 20
Benefits paid [80) - 6 9) {51) - (51)
Al 31 December 184 9 - 154.9 148 3 - 148 3

The current cortribution acheduls in plsce will have the Group make a cash cortnbution of £2 2m in respact of ihe UK retirement banefit obligstions in the year snding 31 Dacember 2013
©n 31 December 2012 a payment of £1m was made |n respect of the £2 2m schaduleq conirbutions due in 2013 leaving & balance of £1 2m dus for payment in 2013
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13 Ratirement benefit obligationa {continued)

The UK asseis in the scheme and the expectsd rats of retum were

2012 2011
Long term Long l&m
rate of retum rate of retum
axpacted Valve oxpected Valus
per annum % £m _perannum % £m
Equrtles 73 787 75 645
Bonds 23 595 as 597
Other asseis 38 197 64 181
38 1549 57 1483
The overall expeciad return on scheme assats is dstenmined by refarsnce (o the expected rates of rstum ON each class of asset staisd above together with tha axpscted profils of
investments hek!
Tha amounts r nine income are 83 follows
Group Group
2012 2019
£m £m
Interesi obligation included withun finance costs 7 98
Expectad retum on achame assets _included within finence income &2 (88)
Net expenss 15 -

d sistemen of

Group ectuarial losses of £4 5m {2011 £19 8m) wers recognised in the year and includsd in the cor
josses L ot in the cor of ive income |3 E53 5m (2011 £45 Om)

The actual g&in on plan assets was £11 4m (2041 £2 5m)

Tha Company did nol cperate any defited contribution schemes or definad benafit

i year snded 31 D

during the fl

19 Provisions for ather fiabilities and charges

Incoma  The cumutative amount of actuarlal

Group Growp
2012 2011
Proparty dilapldation obligations £m em
At 1 January 121 0e
Credited to the income statement during the yoar . 3
Provisions for property plant and aquipment during the year 08 20
Utilised during the year - 032
At 31 Decambar 127 121
Non-current 13 4
Curment 14 o7
12.7 121

Proparty ! 13 relate 1o property held by (he group and primarily represent 1) property to ds orginal at the end of the l=ase term
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20 Defarved tax liabllities

The movament on the defermed tax account is as shown balow

Group Group
2012 01
£m Em
Defermed tax
At 1 January e9s 838
Exchange sdjustment a1 01
Acquisttion of subsidiaries - {on
Tax credn on retremant benefit otdigmion actuarial oss aken dirsctly to other comprahansive incoms o4 “n
Credited tg the income statement In ihe yesr arn (156
At 31 Dacember 821 895

Defemed inx assets and kabiktias are only offset where there is s legally enforceable nght of offset and there Is an intenton Lo settis the balances net

£m
Daferred tax liabilities
At 1 January 2012 {88 Q)
Creditad to (he income statement in tha year 80
At 34 D« ber 2012 (oo
The deferrad tax liabildies are in respect of accelerated tax dgepreclation of £89 Om in respect of customer and and brands assats and other adjustments
and £19 Om for dafamad tax asaets for capital allowances timing differences
Retirernant
Cenelit
obiigations Tax losses Totsl
Em Em £m
Oafarred tax assats
AL 1 January 2012 @7 68 185
Exchange adjustmant ©1) on
Tax credit on beneflt oblig: lass taken directly to other comprehansive incoma o4 - 04
Charged to the income statemant in 1he ysar o7 o4 11
At 31 December 2012 103 71 17
Nat deferved tax Uabiliti t 31 December 2012 821
Em
Delarmed tax llablities
Al 1 January 2011 {105 4)
Acquisttion of subsidiaries (18)
Crodited to the income statement in the year 212
At 31 Docsmber 2011 {86 &)
Retirement
banefit
obfigations Tax Insses Totat
£m £m Em
Defermed {ax assats
At 1 January 2011 57 a8 156
Exchange adjusiment - 10 on
Acqulsition of subsidiares - 19 19
Tax credn on retirement benefit cbligation actuarial loss Laken directly to other comprahensive incoms 47 47
Charged ta the incame staternant in the year [(L2s] (49) 58)
At 31 Decembaer 2011 g7 [:1:] 185
Net deferad tax labilitles at 31 D 2011 (69 5

All of the detarmed tax assets werw available for offset against defermed tax Labdities and hence the net defermed tax Rabilty st 31 December 2012 was £52 1m (2011 £69 5m)

Deferred tax assats havs been rscognised in rnp-ct of tix losses lo the extent that i |s considerad probable based on internal foracasts Lhet these assets will be recovered  In respect
of tax lossas and retii banafilt g tax i to be after more Lhan one year is £3 8m (2011 E3 2m) and £8 5m (2011 £8 6m) respecivaly

asset
mu-mmmmmmumdﬁlmmﬂ £29 1m) in respect of unuliised tax losses in the UK The defermed tax to other p fve income during the
ysar amounted to £0 4m (2011 £4 7m)
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21 Share capial
2012 01
Group and Company Em £m
Authorised
30 000 000 (2011 30 0CO 00C) ordinary shares of £1 300 300
Issued and fully paid Nitmber Em Number £m
Crdinary shares of £1 each
Al 1 January 0,830,979 w7 20,530,978 207
At 31 Dacembser za,mlws 207 20 680 979 207
No shares have beer issued during the year
Other ressrves
22. Resarves Businass
combinations
Accumuiated under common
deficit Hedging comml Other Totsl
Group £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 @535 [ R {141 ®1) (373 8)
Loss for the year (1291) - (128 1)
Net axchange diffarences on forsign curmency transistions - oz 02
o loss (+5) - - [0}
Taxation on retiremant banefit obhigation actuadal [oss o4 - - 04
At 31 Decamber 2012 {488 Ty 01} {14 1) (5 9) {506 8}
Other resorves
Butiness
combinations
Accumulated under common
deflcit Hedging cantrol Crher Total
Group Em im £m £m £m
A1 Jenuary 2011 (257 1) ©2 (58} (263 1}
Loss tor the year 80 9) - - (80 9}
On jon of ¥ g - - {14 1) (14 1}
Net on foreign Y i - 03 0y
R benefit abligation loss {19 9) - 199
Taxation on benefit oblig: loss 44 44
Cash flow hadges {fair value gains in the year - 01 01
Al 31 Decamber 2011 (351 5) (€ 1) {14 1) {6 1) (373 8y
The under conirol reserve i in respeci of any difference between the cost of the acquistion and ihe amounts at which the assets and fiabilitles are
for busi under control

Included within other reserves ere cumulative axchangs losses of £5 9m {2011 £6 1m) These losses have ansen on transiaton of a forsign operation (refer ta note 10 {a) for investments
in subsidiaries for furthar details)

The hedging reserve records the effactive portion of gains and loases arising fram the re-measurement of desig a3 hedging nstruments in cash flow hedges
Accumutated
defict
Company £m
At 1 Janpuary 20412 58
Loss for the year {14 7)
At 31 Decamber 2012 (205)
Accumulated
deficit
Company £m
At 1 January 2011 “n
Logs for the year {18}
AL 31 December 2011 {58
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23 Cash generttad from operating activities

Reconciliztion of losa before taxation (o net cash generated from operations for the year snded 31 Qecamber 2012

Group Gomparry
2012 2011 2012 2011
Em £m £m £m
Loss betors taxstion 423 %) {108 1} -
Adjusiments for
Financa income 140 8} (124) (85 1) 759
Finance costs 1528 1379 351 ™I
Depreclation charges 325 21 -
Amostisetion of intangibles 5aT 497 -
Impairment of goocwill brands nd customar contracts and relationzhips impairment 121 -
Share of profit from asscciate - 09 -
Retiremant benefit contributions paid [k ] 22 -
{Prufil) £ loss on sale of property plant &nd equipmernt [e R 1] 02
Increase in inventories 1 on -
Incrazse in trade and other receivables (214} {0 5) -
Incraase In trade end other payaties 551 239
Cash generated from operations 119 9 126 1 -
24 Analysis of changes In net debt
Cther At
Af 1 January P of h g N b
2012 Cash flow financa l=asas movementy movements 2012
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash équrvalsrts 1452 237 - [05) 183 4
Loan natss 04 R 04
Bank loans Qo 18 - o8 . 04)
Sentor bank loans o0 a0 - 274 {33 4)
DOther loans owsd to parent undartaking ny - 38)
Debt due within one year {162} 438 (26 8) {38 0)
Loan nates ©n 04 - o3y
Bank loans. (157 0) 73 (15 03 1151 8)
Sanior bank loans (909 2) 3g 278 39 aras)
Paymernt-ir-kind loan owed to parent undertaking {281 4) - @217 {303 1)
Cther loans owed to parent undertaking B2 - 08 70}
Sharehotdar loan owed ta parent undertaking {403 ) - (53 7) (453 2)
Dabt due after one year {1,758 0) 116 - (55 9) 38 3,798 )
Finance lease obligations {192) 06 {322) [(o4] {41 0)
Dervative financlel instruments {18) a7 - {35 14}
Total nat debt {1 850 0) 544 (322 86 0) 29 {4,710 9}
Acquistions Other At
Al 1.Jenuary (excluding cash Inception of non-cash Exchangs 31 Decotmber
2011 Cash flow  and overdrafls) finance leases mavaments movenents 2011
Group £rn £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash squivalents 8T 4 837 - (k0] 1452
L.oan notss {0 4) - - 4
Bank boans [-F.] 03 05 . 08 - B
Senior bank loans {95 95 - [:2¢)] - 90
Other joans owed to parent 38 = = = 38
Debt dus within one year (15 5) 88 (@9 28 - (18 2}
Loan notes . o - ©n
Bank loans (1116) (130} 342 06 12 {157 0)
Senior bank loana (891 9) (187 24 ag (900 2)
Payment-in-kind loan (261 8) - (196 - (281 4)
Other loans owed te parent undertakng 54) - o - |2
Shareholder loan owed to parent undertaking (381 7) - (518 {403 5}
Debt due aftor ono year {16224) M7 {34 9) fea Oy 50 (1,758 0}
Finance leass obligations (189) -§:] @n 38 . 03 (192
Derivative financial instruments. [LK)] N - {18)
Total net debt {1 571 5) 437 (@85) X} (B4 3) a4 (18500)

Nel debt comprises the total of cash and cash

H

- bormwings and dertvative financial instruments

other
amounting to £35 3m (2011 £77 Om) and chnnneu in he vahss of derivative financlal Instruments amourting 10 a £3 Sm increase (2011 £0 7m)
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25 Employ and dk .

Aversge mocihly number of pecple empioyed by the Group during the year

02 01
Number Numbar
Digtribution manufacturing and selling 9,229 B 440
Administration 831 888
10,080 82326
w013 2011
£m £m
The costs incumed in respact of thess amploysnss wers
‘Wages and salarles 747 2297
Social securmty cosls a7 410
Duafinad benafit pension costs a9 o2
Desfinad contribution panslan costs (nete 18) 1] 54
3309 286 3
The Company has no employees or employes related casts
Kay manigemaent cormpensation
b0 F 2011
£'000 £000
Safarles and short temm benafits Bess 5188
Post-amplayment benefits 423 274
9079 5 442
The key management figures grven above include The Group key to ba those who have tha authordty and for di
and controlling the activitias of the Group
Curing the year certawn employses hedd 2 128 797 050 A-D ordinery shares lnd loan notes with a nom!nl! vatus of £4 822 090 in = parem ur ing Cuctna | (UK} 2 Limited
as parl of & managemant incentive plan  On 23 November 2012 the aqudy &l of the plan which had been in place since 18 July 2010 was cancelled no IFRS
2 charge had previously been recognised for the aquity saftled shares within this schame as the tair valus of the lnaru at the grant date was matenally equal to the market vaiue that
employees had paid On 23 N ber 2012 a new pach of shares snd loan notes In a parert g Cucina (UK) 3 Limited was entared into with employees holding
31042 457 A-ZZ ordinary shares and loan notes with a normnal value of £2 662 B02  Certain empioyess ratained their koan notes within Cutina trivestments (UK) 2 Umted  The new
shares are equiy seftled no IFRS 2 charge is recognised within the financial of Cucina ns (UK} 3 Limied becauss the Tar value of the new equity lssued is
considerad to be materally equal lo the market vatue
The loan notes held by smploy in the parort king Cucina (UK} 2 Limited accrue irterest at 14 75% unbl Apdl 2013 when the Interest then reducea to 7% Lhe foan
notes held by employ in the parent g Cuclria | {UK) 3 Limited accrue interest at 7%
Drirectors of tha Company and of subsidiery undertakings hoki 13 293 953 A Z shares and loan notas with a nominal value of £1 055 333 in & paren « g Cucna UKy
3 Limriad and 1Gan notes with a nominal value of E382 279 in & parent Cucina | s (UK} 2 Limrsd
Directors’ smaluments
011 201
£'000 £000
Aggregats emoluments 1,921 1966
Company psnsicn centributions to money purchase schemes 109 184
Retrement benefils arm accruing to 3 {2011 2) direciors undar money pensi only
Emoluments paid to the highest paid direcior are as follows
Aggregate smotuments and benefiis 1,003 &24
Company pension contributlons to meney purchase schemes (1] 80
26 Commitmants
{a) Capital commitmants
2012 2011
Group £m £m
At 31 Decamber
Contracted for but not provided 119 88
Capital commitments amounting to £9 8m (2011 £8 tm) are in respect of the develop of the UK metwork and lznd and buikdings and £2 0m (2011 £0 5m) & in reaspect of
mator vehicies
5] & ing lase
The total of future minimum lease payments in respact of non-canceliable operatg leases are as follows
2012 2011
Land snd Land and
bulldings Other buildings Other
Group £m £m £m £m
At 31 Decambar
Within one year 184 L] ] 138 52
Betwesn two and flve years 4.7 LX) 393 237
After five years 103.4 36 35§ 147
184 2 18 2 B8 B 438
Thae Group lsases varkous properues and plant and undar noo b g lease Tha lsazes have v-nnus tun'ns and renewal righta  The Group has atso
sub-lst cartain propertiss under non-car subleass ag and the total of future mirimurn lease pay P be to €0 4m (2011 £12m)
The Company has no capial of operating lesse
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2T Relatad party transactions

During the year the Comparny has entenad into cenain t with other les in the Cuctna (BC) Luxco S 7 Group Details of Ihese ransactions ere as follows
2012 2011
3} Income _stitement £m £m
Finance income on ioans to subsidiary undertakings 831 753
Finance costs on loan from parent undertaking {639) (55 6)
Group tax reffef income {14 7) 1%
2012 2011
{b) Ysar-end balances at 31 Decambar £m Em
Loans owed by subsidlary undsrtakings 773 B854 9
Amounts owed by subsidiary underiakings - financa incoms 241 214
Other owed by subsidigry L 'gs - group tax reliaf {192} 58
Amounts owed to parsrl undedakings  group tax rellel "5y
Shareholder Ivan owed {¢ parent undertaking 483 2) {403 5}
Payment-in-kind ioans owed to parent underiakings (2259} {1159
Other loans owed 10 panant undetaiing {10 8% {100}
Amounts owed (o parent undertakings financa costa (24 1} (20 8)
None of the balances are sacured
As disclosed In note 23 to the financial stat the uitimate @ partias of the Company are Bain Capral Fund IX E LP and Bain Capial Fund VIl E LP  In addition to the above
transactions the Group also purchased management and consulting services and Fnanclal and other advisory services from Bain Capdal Thesa advisory faes in 2012 amounted £17 Tm
(2011 £7 Gm) wsth £4 3m (2011 E4 Om) included within exceptional tams E1 &m (2011 £3 &m) inch within Btive ang E11 8m {2011 £nil) included wihin deit issus
costs  Atthe year end amounts owed to Bain Capetal by the Group and included within trade and other payables for advisory fees dto £0 4m 2012 {2011 £0 9m)
Koy m g it P> Is in note 26
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28. Ultimata parent company and controiling party

The parent. and g party is Cucina Heldings (UK) Limied a company incorporated in the United Kingdom

The ultimate parent undertaking 1s Cucina (BC) Luxco S d rl  a privats imited p in L g Tha ultimats controlling parties of the Company are Bain Caprial Fund
IX E LP and Bain Ceprdal Fund VIl E LP both are axempted limited partnerships ngislerod in the Cayman Islands which sre indirectly controlied by Bain Capral Investers LLC »

Delawars limted lablity company

The parent undertaking of the smaliest group to consolidate these financial statements Is Cucins Finance (UK) Limuted lnd the parent undertaking of the largest UK group to consoldats
these financial statements is Cucina Lux Investments Limited Coplas of Cucina Financa (LJK) Limtsd and Cucina Lux Limzed financial can ba
d from the Company &1 Enterprise House Eureka Business Park Ashford Kent TN25 4AG

29 Post balance sheet svents
Thera ara no post balance sheet sverts
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